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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Commissioners
Gladwin County
Gladwin, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, cach major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Gladwin County, Michigan (County), as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of the Gladwin County Road Commission or the Gladwin City-
County Transit, which represent 79% and 7% of the assets, and 76% and 17% of the revenues of
the aggregate discretely presented component units of the County. Those statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
refates to the amounts included for the Gladwin County Road Commission and the Gladwin
City-County Transit, is based on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statemnents in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Gladwin
County, Michigan, as of December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of funding progress and employer
contributions, and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, cconomic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
CXpress an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to €Xpress ar opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Gladwin County, Michigan’s basic financial statements. The combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.
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The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
cxpenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 1o
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themsclves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Govermment A wditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Stundurds, we have also issued our report dated June
17, 2013, on our consideration of Gladwin County, Michigan's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

PRELIMINARY

Midland, Michigan
June 17,2015

Lad



Gladwin County
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year ended December 31, 2013

As management of Gladwin County, Michigan (County), we offer readers of the County's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
County for the year ended December 31, 2014, We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the accompanying basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights
» The net position of the County was $5,585,420 at December 31, 2014. Of this amount,
$861,537 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the County’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The County’s total net position increased by $571,037 during 2014,

* As of the close of the current year, the County’s governmental funds (this includes the
general fund, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds) reported combined
ending fund balances of $5,221,796, a increase of $890,464 in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately 21% of this total amount, or $936,824, is available for spending at
the County’s discretion (assigned or unassigned fund balance).

e At the end of the current year, the general fund had an unassigned fund balance of
$936,824, or 10% of total general fund expenditures.

¢ The County’s total bonded debt, excluding delinquent tax notes, remained the same
during the current year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic
financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar
to a private-sector business. The statement of net position presents information on all of the
County’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows, with the difference reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net position changed
during the most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected special assessments and accrued interest expense).



Gladwin County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activitics). The governmental activities of the County include
legislative, judicial, general government, public safety, public works, health and welfare,
community and economic development, recreation and culture, and other functions. The

business-type activities of the County include the various delinquent tax revolving and reversion
funds,

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as the
primary government), but also a legally separate Road Commission, Department of Public
Works, Drain Commission, Land Bank Authority, and City-County Transit for which the County
is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported
separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. The
Gladwin County Building Authority, although legally separate, functions for all practical
purposes as a department of the County, and therefore has been included as an integral part of the
primary government.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as povernmental activitics in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful
in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.



Gladwin County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The County maintains 34 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Emergency Medical Services
Fund, E-911 Millage Fund, Wireless E-911 Fund, and Senior Citizens Program Fund, each of
which is considered to be a major fund. Data from the other 29 governmental funds are
combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmenta! funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general and special revenue funds.
Budgetary comparison schedules for each of the major funds have been provided herein to
demonstrate compliance with those budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-18 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains one type of proprietary fund: enterprise funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its
various delinquent tax revolving and reversion fund operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Unallocated Tax Revolving and the 2014 Tax Revolving Fund, both of which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other proprietary funds are combined in
separate single aggregated presentations in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual
fund data for each of these nonmajor enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-22 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the County. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-24 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 27-61 of this
report,

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the
County's postemployment health benefits schedule of funding progress and employer
contributions and the major funds’ budgetary comparison schedules.

The combining statements referred to carlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds
arc presented immediately following the required supplementary information.



Gladwin County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a uscful indicator of the County’s
financial position. As the following table demonstrates, the County's net position was
£5,870,133 as of December 31, 2014,

Gladwin County’s Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totai
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Assets
Current and other assets $ 7,941,182 $7,207461 3,037,723 § 2,906,194 $10,978,9055 10,1 13,6355
Capital assets, net 557,864 523,630 - - 557,864 523,630
Tatal assets 8,499,046 7,731,091 3,037,723 2,906,194 11,367,769 10,637,283
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 2,528,237 2,156,470 1,120,000 1,103,000 3,648,237 3,258,470
Other liabilities 212,898 156,735 - 96,740 212,898 254,475
Total liabilities 2,392,409 2,313,205 1,120,000 1,199,740 3,861,135 3,512,945
Deferred inflows of resources 2,090,214 2,109,957 - - 2,090,241 2,109,957
Net position
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 557,864 523,630 - - 557,864 523,630
Restricted 4,166,019 3,934,490 - - 4,166,019 3,934,490
Unrestricted (deficit) (1,056,186) (1,150,191) 1,917,723 1,706,454 861,537 556,263
Total net position 53,667,697 $3,307,929 51,917,723 § 1,706,454 $5,5854208 5,014,383

The largest portion of the County's net position, $4,166,019 (75%), represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be spent. An additional portion of
net position, $861,537 (15%), is considered unrestricted and may be used to meet the
County's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The remaining balance of $557,864
reflects the County’s investment in capital assets (i.e., land, buildings and improvements,
vehicles and boats, and equipment and furniture); less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

At December 31, 2014, the County is able to report positive balances in all categories of net
position for the government as a whole,



Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
State revenue sharing
Interest earnings
Other
Total revenues

Expenses

Legislative

Judicial

General government

Public safety

Public works

Health and welfare

Community and
economic development

Recreation and culture

Other functions

Interest on long-term
debt

Delinquent tax
revolving and
reversion

Total expenses

Change in net position
before transfers

Transfers

Change in net position

Net position-beginning

Net position-ending

Gladwin County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Gladwin County's Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$2,192,597 $2,141,998 S 844,124 § 840,163 $3,075,006 $ 2,982,161
1,211,828 1,211,369 - - 1,211,828 1,211,369
- 38,210 - - - 38,210
6,496,577 5,404,583 - - 6,496,644 5,404,583
438,945 334,805 - - 438,945 334,805
10,922 11,157 1,545 1,253 12,467 12,410
141,557 49,788 - - 141,557 49,788
10,492,426 9,191,910 845,669 41416 11,376,447 10,033,326
161,884 161,593 - - 161,884 161,593
1,515,479 1,656,467 - - 1,515479 1,656,467
1,777,824 1,856,649 - - 1,777,824 1,856,649
4,001,687 4,416,548 - - 4,001,687 4,416,548
413 42,098 - - 413 42,098
2,164,510 2,220,103 - - 2,164,510 2,220,103
17,896 37,716 - - 17,896 37,716
17,091 23,288 - - 17,091 23,288
638,989 731,869 - - 638,989 731,869
2 6,790 - - - 6,790
- - 159,401 208,354 159,401 208,354
10,295,773 11,153,121 159,401 208,354 10,455,174 11,361,475
196,653 (1,961,211) 686,268 633,062 921,273 (1,328,149)
470,870 1,128,039 (474,999)  (1,128,039) (4,129) -
667,523 (833,172) 211,269 (494,977) 917,144  (1,328,149)
3,307,929 4,141,101 1,706,454 2,201,431 5,014,383 6,342,532
3,952,410 %1,307,929 1,917,723 51,706,454 5,870,133  §5,014,383




Gladwin County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The County’s net position increased by $571,037 during the current year; a $359,768 increase for
governmental activities and a $211,269 increase for business-type activities.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by
$571,037. Key elements of this increase are as follows:
¢ Revenues increased compared to the prior year by $1,300,583, or 14%. This was
primarily a result of a decrease in property taxes due to one less levy in 2013 compared to
2012.
¢ Expenses decreased compared to the prior year by $857,348, or 8%.
e Net transfers received from business-type activities increased compared to the prior year
by $68,179, or 6%. This was a result of transfers received from the various delinquent
tax funds.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the County’s net position by
$211,269. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

» Revenues increased compared to the prior year by $4,253, or 1%. The increase was a
result of higher collection fees, proceeds of land sales, interest on property taxes, and
other various fees.

e Expenses decreased compared to the prior year by $120,953, or 43%. The decrease was a
result of lower fees and charges.

o Net transfers to governmental activities decreased by $653,040, or 58%.

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds
As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measurement of County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
year.

As of December 31, 2014, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $5,221,796, an increase of $890,465 in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 72% of the ending fund balances is subject to the underlying lirnitations
applicable to the particular special revenue, debt service, or capital projects fund and is not
available for new spending because it has already been spent or has been restricted or assigned
for various functions/activities. The remaining 18% of the total fund balance amount constitutes
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the County’s discretion.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current year, the
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $936,824 while total fund balance amounted
to $958,389. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund
balance represents 11% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
approximately that same amount.



Gladwin County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The fund balance of the County’s General Fund increased by $672,146during the current year.
This increase resulted from the combination of a 8% increase in revenue, a 6% decrease in
expenditures, and a 10% decrease in the net transfers out of the General Fund.

The Emergency Medical Services fund had an increase in fund balance for the current year of
$233,410, for an ending total of $1,686,725. There was no millage levied for emergency medical
services in 2014, however, the services were still paid for from accumulated reserves.

The E-211 Millage fund had a decrease in fund balance for the current year of $104,211 for an
ending total of $881,008. This decrease was primarily the result of transfers out and
expenditures in excess of property taxes collected.

The Wireless E-911 fund had an increase in fund balance for the current year of $123,689, for an
ending total of $799,301. This increase was primarily the result of state revenue in excess of
expenditures.

The Senior Citizens Program fund had a decreasle in fund balance for the current year of $16,683,
for an ending total of $168,452. This decrease was primarily the result of expenditures in excess
of property taxes collected.

Proprietary funds. The County’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Unallocated Tax Revolving and 2014 Tax Revolving funds at the
end of the year amounted to $701,928 and $85,068, respectively. The combined unrestricted net
position of the nonmajor enterprise funds were $1,130,727 at the end of the year. The
Unallocated Tax Revolving fund had an increase in net position for the year of $612,648. The
2014 Tax Revolving fund had an increase in net position for the year of $85,068. The combined
decrease in net position of the nonmajor enterprise funds was $448,162 for the year. The
increases and decreases in the enterprise funds were largely a result of transfers in and out of the
various funds..

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Overall during the year, General Fund revenues (revenue and other financing sources) were
more than the budgetary estimates by $86,873 or 5%. This was caused primarily by a
positive variance with the budget of other financing sources. Expenditures (expenditures
and other financing uses) were less than budgetary estimates overall by $296,416 or 7%.
This was caused primarily by over spending in most line items. This activity resulted in
an increase in fund balance of $383,289.
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Gladwin County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as
of December 31, 2014, amounted to $492,665 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, equipment and
furniture, and vehicles and boats.

Gladwin County Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated

Depreciation)
2014 2013
Land §297,231 §$ 297,231
Buildings and improvements 55,359 58,819
Equipment and furniture 22,145 26,780
Vehicles and boats 117,930 140,300

$492,665 $ 523,630

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Section III, Note B of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current year, the primary government had total debt
outstanding of $1,120,000.

Gladwin County Long-Term Debt
2014 2013
General obligation bonds (governmental activities) $ - % -
General obligation limited tax notes (business-type activities) 1,120,000 1,103,000
$1,120,000 $1,103,000

Additional information on the County's long-term debt can be found in Note 3B of this
report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the County's 2015 budget:

e Property tax revenues are projected to increase due to the addition of the millage for
emergency medical services.

» Employee hours/positions remain reduced due to the continued four-day work
schedule for many County offices.

Contacting the County's Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances to
all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should
be addressed to the Gladwin County Clerk’s Office, 401 West Cedar Avenue, Gladwin,
Michigan 48624,

It



Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable
Due from other governmental units
Advances to component unit
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Cash on deposit with agent
Net pension asset
Capital assets:
Assets not being depreciated
Assets being depreciated, net
Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued interest payable

Due to other governmental units
Advances from primary government
Performance deposits

Advances from other governmental units

Long-term liabilities:

Net OPEB obligation

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Property taxes levied for a subsequent period

Gladwin County

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2014

Primary Government

Special assessments levied for a subsequent period -

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

See accompanving notes

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
§ 3,091,095 S 1,080,657 54,171,752 § 1,935,681
2,473,512 285215 2,758,727 1,277,285
26,989 - 26,989 840,895
1,887,665 1,671,851 3,559,516 1,703,671
- - - 1,453,886
286,754 - 286,754 621,443
6,300 - 6,300 S
- . - 341,328
- - - 113,901
- - - 143,511
168,367 - 168,867 811,102
297,231 - 297,231 1,790,646
260,633 - 260,633 27,867,911
8,499,046 3,037,723 11,536,769 38,903,260
172,212 - 172,212 178,185
40,636 - 40,686 61,671
- - - 25,796
- - - 140,322
- - - 6,300
- - - 53,000
- - - 179,041
2,300,538 - 2,300,538 3,411,898
227,699 1,120,000 1,347,699 463,192
- - - 3,344,256
2,741,135 1,120,000 3,861,135 7.863,661
2,090,214 - 2,090,214 1,703,671
- - 157,788
2,090.214 - 2,090,214 1.861.459
57,864 - 557,864 26,733,010
Lﬁ} - 4,166,019 3,171,554
/ (1,056, 1 6) 1.917,723 861,537 (726,424)
3 66}697 1,917,723 $5,585420 8 29.178,140
12



Gladwin County
Statement of Activities
Year ended December 31, 2014

Program Revenues

Indirect Operating Capitul Net
Expenses  Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions  Revenue
Governmental activities:

Legislative § 164939 $ - 3 - 8 - 5 - 5 (164,939

Judicial 1,585,281 - 703.996 514,512 - 1364,773)

General government 1,959,417 {108,085) 353 349 98,706 - {1,198,777)

Public safety 4,197,870 20,693 B0, 061 215,649 - (3,192,853)

Public works 439 - 874 - - 385

Health and welfare 2,125.8M 19213 128,879 316,405 - (1,729,803)

Communmity and economic development 17,896 5 2,437 7.813 - (7.646)

Recreauion and culture 17,091 - 301 68,946 - 52,356

Other funcuons 638,989 - - - - 1638,989)

Interest on Jong-term debt - - - - - =
Tatal govermmental activities 10,707,846 {38.179) 2,192,597 1,332,031 - i7.245,03%9)
Business-type activities:

Delinquent tax revolving and reversion 137,573 1.828 844,124 - = 684,723
Total business-type activitics 157,573 1.828 844,124 - - 684,723
Total primary government § 10,865,419 % (36351 § 3036721 & 1,232031 § - % (6,560,316)
Component vnits:

Road Commission $ 6,721,351 § 4,650 % 1830997 § 3,608,251 § 1,706,178 § 509424

Department of Public Works 26,470 - 26470 - - -

Drain Commission 531,430 - 827,960 - - 296530

L.and Bank Authority 74,724 - 57.695 - - (17.029)

Gladwin City-County Transit 1,927,257 6,450 183.636 940,695 127,841 (681.535)
Tetal component units S 9281232 § ILI0L § 2926758 § 4638946 §  1.834019 § 107390

Primary Government
Governmental Dusiness-type Component
Activities Activitiey Total U'nits
Change in uet position
Net (expense) revenie $ {7.245039) % 684,723 & (6,560,316) § 107,390
General revenues

Property taxes 6,505,465 - 6,505,465 2,166,286

State revenue sharing 438,045 . 438,943 -

Interest camings 10,922 1,543 12,467 7,235

Gain on sale of assets - - - 60,584

Other 178,605 - 178,605 18,078
Fransfers 470,870 {474,999} (4,129) -
Total general revenues and transfers 7,604,807 (473,454} 7,131,353 2,252,183
Change in net position 359,768 211,269 571,037 2,359,573
Net position-beginning 3,307,929 1,706,154 5,014,383 26,818,567
Net posiion-ending $ 3667697 § 1,017,723 § 5585420 % 29,178,140

See accompunying notes.




Gladwin County

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Accounts receivable

Taxes recetvable

Due rom other governmental units
Advances to component units
Total ugsets

Liabilitics
Accounts payable
Acerued expenses
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - property tixes

Unavailable revenue - long-term accounts receivable

Property taxes levied for a subsequent period
Total deterred intlows of resources

Fund balances

Ninspendable

Restricted

Assigned

L'nassizned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund halances

See aecompanving noley

December 31, 2014

Emergency Wireless
General Medical E-911 E-911
Fund Services Millage Fund
$ 635107 § 831396 § 629,797 5 283,299
10,969 1149014 471,708 475,226
(3.771) - - -
458,879 633,099 176,241 -
202,247 - - 39,026
6,300 - -

S 1309731

$ 1615709

5 1.577.746

S 799551

£ 105292 § - % - 8 250
40,037 - 5 -
145,349 . - 250
205,993 - - -
- 928,984 096,738 -
2053993 928,984 096,738 -
6,300 . 5 5

- 1.686.725 881.00% 799,301

15,263 - - -
936,824 - S 3
258,389 1,686,723 881,008 799,301

$ 1.309.731

§ 2615709

$1.577.746

§ 799,551




Gladwin County
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Senior Other

Citizens Guvernmental

Program Fumls Total
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents § 15330640 § 353,650 $ 3.091,093
Investments 159,852 206,743 § 2473512
Accounts receivable - 30760 § 26,989
TI'axes receivable 317446 - S 1,887,665
Due from other gosernmental units - 43481 5 286,734
\dvances to component units - - 5 6,300
Tutal assets S 6324944 § 836.634 S 7,772.313
Liabilities
Accounts pasable b3 - 8 66,670 3 172,212
Accrued expenses - 629 § 10,686
Total liabilities - 67,299 212,898
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes - - 205,993
Unavailable revenue « leng-term accounts receivable - 41414 1A
Property taxes levied tor a subsequent period 464,492 - 2,090,214
Futal delerred intlows of resources 464,492 J1ALd 2.337.621
Fund balances
Monspendable - - 6.300
Restricied 108,432 630,533 4,166,019
Assigned - 97.388 112,633
Unassigned - - 036,824
Tatal fund balances 168,452 727.021 5,221,796
lTotal liabitities, deferred inllows of resources.
and tund balances $ 632944 § 836,634 § 7.772.313

Nev aceompanying noles




Gladwin County
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Total fund balances for governmental tunds $5,221,796

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:
Add - capital assets 2,977,820
Deduct - accumulated depreciation (2,419,956)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and their inflows are deferred in the funds. Those items consist of:

Add - deferred inflows related to taxes receivable 205,993
Add - deferred inflows related to accounts receivable 41,414
Add - net pension asset 168,867

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmentali activities are not
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as

fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the
statement of net position. Those liabilities consist of®

Deduct - other postemployment benefit obligation (2,300.538)
Deduct - accrued compensated absences (227,699)
Total net position of governmental activitics $ 3,667,697

See accompanying notes 16



Gladwin County
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Year ended December 31, 2014

Revenues

Property taxes and related fees
Licenses and permits
Federal revenue

State revenue

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest earnings
Reimbursements

Donations and contributions
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Legislative

Judicial

General government
Public safety

Public works

tHealth and welfare
Community and economic development
Recreation and culture
hther

Debt service

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
[ransicrs in

Transfers out

Total sther (inancing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances

IFund balances-heginning
Fund balances-ending

See accompanying notes.

Emergency Wircless

General Medical E-9211 E-911

Fund Services Millage Fund
$4,572,294 $ 932330 $ 699,159 § S
306,710 - - -
318,546 - - -
983,054 - - 162,591
1,460,881 - - -
4,767 J.lle 957 1,185
240,990 - = -
128,324 - s -
8,017,566 935,446 700,116 163,776
161,884 - - 4
1,518,109 - - £
1,800,334 - - -
3.629.261 - 49,610 40,087
413 - - =
484,333 702,036 - -
28,9235 - - -
13,344 - - -
638,989 - - -
209,994 S 5 -
§.485,386 702,036 49,610 40,087
{468,020} 233410 650,506 123,684
1,351,672 - - -
{211,506) - (734.717) -
1,140,166 - (734.717) -
672,146 233410 (104,211} 123,089
280,243 1453315 985,219 673,612
$ 058389 51,686,725 S 881,008 S 799,301

17



Gladwin County
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year ended December 31, 2014

Senior Other

Citizens  Governmental

Program Funds Total
Revenues
Propeny taxes and related fees $466.120 S {71y 56,669,832
Licenses and permits - - $ 306,710
Federal revenue - 171,828 § 490,374
State revenue - 205,987 3 1,353,632
Charges for services - 336.029 S 1,796,910
IFines and forfeitures . 160 3 160
Interest carnings 3i8 1,686 $§ 12,229
Reimbursements . 37.682 § 298,672
Daonations and contributicns - (1.801) § (1.801)
Miscellaneous - 13,233 5§ 141,557
Total revenues 466,638 784,733 11,068,275
Expenditures
Legislative - . 161.884
Judicial - - 1,518,109
General government - 103,244 1,903,578
Public safety - 96,769 3815727
Public wuorks - - 413
[Health and welfare 483,321 324610 2,194,360
Community and cconomie development - 167,347 196,472
Recreation and culture - - 13,344
Other - - 638,989
Debt service - - =
Capital outlay . - 209,994
Total expenditures 483,321 892.170 10,652,810
Excess (deficiency ) of revenues over expenditures {16,683) (17,437 415,465
Other finaneing sources {uses)
Transters in - 194,000 1,543,672
Transiers out . (104,449 (1.070,672)
Futal other financing sources [uses) - §9.331 173000
Net change in fund balances (16.683) {17.386) 890463
Fund balances-beginning 185,133 745,807 4331331
Fund balances-ending 168452 § 717921 5 5.221.796

See uccompuanying notes



Gladwin County
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activitics
Year ended December 31, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 390,465

['he change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Add - capital outlay 92,573
Deduct - depreciation expense (58,339)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current resources
are not reported as fund revenues. 20,241

Certain expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the funds.

Deduct - increase in net other postemployment benefit obligation (377,168)
Deduct - decrease in nel pension asset (2,136)
Add - decrease in accrued compensated absences 5,401

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmentad funds

in the period issued, but issuing bonds increases long-term liabilities tn the

statement of net position. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in

the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in

the statement of net position.,

Add - principal payments on long-term liabilities -
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 571,037

¥ ’ e ; ' ‘.
See accompunying notes. 14



Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Taxes receivable
Advances to other funds
Total assets (all current)

Liabilities

Accrued expenses
Advances from other funds
Notes payable

l'otal linbilities (all current)

Net position

Unrestricted
Total net position

See accompanying notes

Gladwin County
Statement of Net Position - Proprictary Funds
December 31, 2014

Unallocated Other
Tax 2014 Tax  Enterprise
Revolving  Revolving Funds Tatal
S 662391 $§ 115495 § 302,771 5 1,080,657
- - 285,215 285,215
39,537 1,209,573 422,741 1,671,851
- - 265,000 265,000
701,928 1,325,068 1,275,727 3,302,723
- 120,000 145,000 265,000
- 1,120,000 - 1,120,000
- 1,240,000 145,000 1,385,000
701,928 85,068 1,130,727 1,917,723
$ 701928 $ 85068 § 1,130,727 $ 1,917,723




Gladwin County
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds
Year ended December 31, 2014

Unallocated Other
Tax 2014 Tax Enterprise
Revolving Revolving Funds Total
Operating revenues
{nterest earned on delinquent taxes h 4258 % 69931 § 281,427 $§ 355616
Collection fees - 35,369 453,139 488,508
Total operating revenues 4,258 105,300 734,566 844,124
Operating expenses
Fees and charges - - 136,192 136,192
Total operating expenses - - 136,192 136,192
Operating income 4,258 105,300 598,374 707,932
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest earnings 107 34 1,384 1,545
Interest expense - (20,286) {2,923) (23,209
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 107 (20,232) (1,539) (21,664)
Income before transfers 4,365 85,068 596,835 686,268
Transfers
Transfers in 958,283 - - 958,283
Transfers out (350,000) - (1,083,282) (1,433,282)
Total transfers 608,283 - (1,083,282)  (474,999)
Changes in net position 612,648 85,068 (486,447) 211,269
Total net position-beginning 89,280 - 1,617,174 1,706,454
Total net position-ending $ 701,928 § 85,068 $1,130,727 $1,917,723

See accompanying noles.



Gladwin County

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprictary Funds

Year ended December 31, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts trom penalties and interest on
delinquent taxes

Payments for delinquent tax rolls

Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities

Proceeds from interfund advances
Issuances / repayments of interfund advances
Procceds from issuance of notes payable
Principal paid on notes payable

Interest paid on notes payable

Transfers in

Transters out

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of invesiments
Interest earnings

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning
Cash and cash equivalents-ending

Recoanciliation of operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Change in assets and liabilities:

laxes receivable

Accrued expenses
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See uccompanying noies

Unatllocated Other
Tax 2014 Tax Enterprise
Revolving Revolving Funds Total
S (35279) S (1,104.273) $ 1,577,749 § 438,197
(142.060) - (136,192) (278,252)
(177,339)  (1,104,273) | 441,557 159,945
- - 330,000 350,000
- 120,000 (496,000) (376,000)
- (20,286) - {20,286)
958,283 - - 958,233
(350,000) - {1,083,282)  (1,433,182)
608.283 99,714+ (1,229,282) (521,285
360,242 - - 360,242
107 54 1.384 1,545
360,349 54 1.334 361,787
791.293 (1,004,505) 213,659 447
71.075 - 927.648 998,723
S 862,368 5 (1,004,505) $ 1,141,307 § 999,170
$ 4,258 5 105300 § 598374 S 707932
(39.537)  (1.209.573) 412,039 (837,071)
{142,060} - - {142,060)
§ (177,339) S (1,104,273y S 1,010,413 & (271.199)
L



Gladwin County
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
December 31, 2014

Private-
Purpose
Trust Fund -  Agency
Inmate Trust Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents h) 6,969 § 289912
Total assets 6,969 § 289912
Liabilities
Due to other governmental units 3 - § 145,102
Due to others 6,762 146,154
Total liabilities 6,762 $ 291,256

Net position held in trust for
Specific programs 207

Total net position 5 207

See accompanying notes.



Gladwin County
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year ended December 31, 2014

Private-
Purpose
Trust Fund -
Inmate Trust

Additions
[nvestment income:
[nterest carnings $ -

Net investment income -

Change in net position S
Net position held in trust for specific projects-beginning 207

Net position held in trust for specific projects-ending $ 207

See accompanying notes.



Assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable
Due from other governmental units
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Cash on depasit with agent
Net pension asset
Caputal assets:
Assets nol being depreciated
Assets being depreciated, net
lotal assets

Liabilitics
Accounts payable
Acerued expenses
Acerued interest payable
Due 1o other governmental units
Advances from primary government
Unearned revenue
Performance deposits
Advances from other governmental
units
Long-term lLabilities:
Net OPEB obligation
Due within one vear
Due in more than ane year
Tuotal liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes tevied fora
subsequent pertod

Special assessments levied Jor a
subsequent period

Total deferred inflaws of resourees

Net position
lnvested in capital assets, net of
Roestricted tor
Debt service
Acyuisition/construction of capital
assets
Cash on deposit with agent
Nel penston assel
Unrestricied
Total net position

See accompanying noifes

Gladwin County
Combining Statement of Net Position - Component Units
December 31, 2014

Gladwin
I¥epartment Land City-County
Road of Public Drain Ranlk Iransit
Commission Warls Commission  \uthority Y30/2014 Total
$ 5397372 0% 174629 8 T4R.28F S L1278 3700068 § 1.935.681
1.113.403 - 163,882 - - 1.277.243
838,330 - - - 1,565 §40.895
1,703.671 - - - - 1.703.671
- - 1.453.886 - - 1.453.886
- 343,540 - - 77,903 621,443
204,101 - - - 45,227 341,328
97.229 - - 16,672 3o
- - - - 145,511 145,511
153.095 - - - 638,007 811,102
1,776,511 - - - 14,135 1,790,646
15,036,718 - 1.517.557 - 1,293,636 27867911
31.632.630 T18.169 3.883,610 41,127 2,627,724 38.903.260
97.300 - 1.000 - 79.885 178,185
15,093 - - - 16,578 01.671
9,698 8,540 7,338 . - 25,796
. S e - 140,322 140,322
. - 6.300 - - 6,300
33,000 - . - - 53.000
179.041 - - - - 179,041
3. 411,898 - - - - 3418898
256,417 80,000 93,000 - 31773 163.192
1,364,236 455,000 1,325,000 - - 3.344.2356
3.586,703 543,540 1,434 858 - 298,560 7.463.601
1.703.671 - - - 1,703.671
- - 157,788 - - 157,733
1.703.671 - 137.788 - - 1,861,459
25327642 - 97.357 - 1,307,771 26,733.010
. 1,550 445406 - - 416,956
. 173.079 1,718,001 - - 1.921.080
- - - - 143511 113,51]
S - - - 638.007 658,007
(985.126) - - 1,127 217,875 1726.421)
$21342.256 5 170629 § 2290964 % V127 0§ 2,329,164 S 29178140

-
L



Gladwin County

Combining Statement of Activitics - Component Units

Road Commission
Gosernmental activities:
Public works
Interest on long-1erm debt
lotal Road Commission

Department of Public Waorks
Governmental activities:

Interest on fong-term debt
Fotal Department of Public Works

Drain Commission
Governmental activities:
Public works
Interest on long-term debt
Fotal Drain Commission

Land Bank Authority
Business-type activities:

Year ended December 31, 2014

Community and economic development

Total Land Bank Authority

Gladwin City-County Transit 93072014

Business-ty pe activities:
T'ransportation

Tota! Gladwin City-County Transi

Fotal companent units

Program Revenuces

Clhange in net pasition

Met fexpense) revenne 3

Cieneral revenues
Property taxes
Interest carnings
Gairn on sale of assets
Other

Fotal general revenues

Change in net positon
Net position-begmming

Net position-ending

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net (Expense}
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Revenue
$6,695,006 § 1,830,997 § 3698251 S L706,178 % 340,420
30,996 - - - {30,996)
6,726,002 1,830.997 3.098.251 1,706,178 509,424
26470 26,470 - - &
26,470 16,470 - - -
472,430 #27.960 - - 355,530
59,000 - - . {59,000}
331,430 §27.960 - - 196,530
74.724 37.693 - - (17.029)
74,724 37,695 - - (17.029)
1,933,707 183,636 940,693 127.841 {6081.535)
t 1,933,707 183.636 940.693 127,841 {681.335)
$9292333 § 2926738 § 4638916 S 1LB34019 & 107,390
Gladwin
Department Land City-County
Road ol Public Drain Bank Fransit
Commission Waorks Commission Authority 9/30/20t4 Total
509,424 § - $ 296,530 S (17,0293 $ (681,335) § 107,390
1.703.8.44 - - - 162,442 2,166,286
3,213 32 L1131 6l 776 7,235
60,544 - - - 60.584
- - - - 18,078 18,078
1,769,643 32 1131 6l 481.296 2252183
2279067 52 297,661 (16.968) (200,239 2.359.573
22,063,189 174,577 1.993.303 58.0935 2,329,403 26,818,567
$ 24342256 S 174629 5 2290964 % J1.127 % 2329064 5 29,178,140

See accompanying notes



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Description of government-wide financial statements

[he government-wide financial statements (i.c.. the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the nontiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units.  All fiduciary activities are reported oaly in the tund financial
statements.  Govermmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. are reported separately from  business-(ype
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately trom certain legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

B. Reporting Entity

Gladwin County, Michigan (County) was organized in 1875, covers an area of 503 square miles
divided into 15 townships and two cities, and has 25,692 residents (based on the 2010 census).
The county seat is located in the City of Gladwin. The County operates under an clected Board
of Commissioners (County Board) with seven members and provides many services to its
residents including law enforcement, administration of justice, community enrichment and
development, and human services.

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The County’s significant accounting policics are described below.

As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the
County and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in the
County’s reporting entity because they are entities tor which the County is considered to be
financially accountable.

Blended component unit — The Building Authority has been included as part of the County
financial statements since the County appoints the governing authority and the Building
Authority provides its services entirely to the County. The Building Authority is reported as a
debt service fund and does not issue separate financial statements.

Discretely presented component units

The component unit column in the government-wide linancial statements includes the financial
data of the County’s other component units. These units are reported in a separate column to
cmphasize that they are legally separate from the County.




Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B. Reporting Entity (continued)

Discretely presented component units (continued)

Road Commission - The Gladwin County Road Commission (Road Commission) is governed by
an clected three member Board of County Road Commissioners. The Road Commission may
not issue debt or levy a tax without the approval of the County Board. If approval is granted,
Road Commission’s taxes are levied under the taxing authority of the County, as approved by the
County electors. The nature and significance of the relationship between the primary
government and the Road Commission is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s
financial statements to be misleading. A complete financial statement can be obtained from the
Gladwin County Road Commission, 301 South State Street, Gladwin, Michigan 48624,

Gladwin City-County Transit — The Gladwin City-County Transit (Transit) is a county-wide
transportation system created by an interlocal agreement dated June 22, 1981, between the
County and the City of Gladwin. Pursuant to the interlocal agreement, administrative control of
the system was transferred to the Gladwin City Housing Commission (Housing Commission),
with the County Treasurer acting as fiscal agent for the system. The Transit may not issue debt
and the tax levy is subject to County Board approval. The transit taxes are levied under the
taxing authority of the County, as approved by the County electors. The nature and significance
of the relationship between the primary government and the Transit is such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading. Due to the difference in the
fiscal year-end of the Transit, the September 30, 2014 amounts have been included in the County
audit. A complete financial statement can be obtained from the Gladwin City Housing
Commission, 615 Weaver Ct, Gladwin, Michigan 48624,

Department of Public Works — Pursuant to Michigan Compiled Law 123.732, Gladwin County
created the Department of Public Works. The Department of Public Works operates under the
general control of the County Board and under the immediate control of a Board of Public
Works, which includes the County Drain Commissioner. The Board of Public Works is
considered an agency of the County. The Board of Public Works manages water supply and
sanitary sewer system construction projects that are bonded by the County. Bonds issued are
authorized by an ordinance or a resolution approved by the Board of Public Works and adopted
by the County Board. The nature and significance of the relationship between the County and
the Department of Public Works is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Drain Commission — Each of the drainage districts established pursuant to the Drain Code of
1956 are scparate legal entities, with the power to contract, to sue and be sued, to hold, manage
and dispose of real and personal property, etc. The Drain Commissioner is responsible for
planning, developing, and maintaining surface water drainage systems within the County. The
Drain Commissioner, on behalf of cach drainage district, may issue debt or levy a tax as
authorized by the State Drain Code without the approval of the County Board. The County
employs all tull-time employees and the elected officials of the Drain Commission. The Drain
Commission deposits its receipts with the County Treasurer. The nature and significance of the
relationship between the County and the Drain Commission is such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B. Reporting Entity (continued)

Discretely presented component units (continued)

Land Bank Authority — The Gladwin County Land Bank Authority (Land Bank) is a public body
corporate organized pursuant to the Michigan Land Bank Fast Track Public Act 238 and an
intergovernmental agreement entered into between the Michigan Land Bank Fast Track
Authority and the County Treasurer. The Land Bank was created to acquire, hold, manage and
develop tax-foreclosed properties, as well as other vacant and abandoned properties. The Land
Bank was legally established on October 16, 2008, and began operations on that date. The Land
Bank is comprised of seven members. as follows: the County Treasurer, one member of the
County Board, and five persons appointed by the County Board to represent the interests of the
City of Gladwin, the City of Beaverton, the townships in the County, and the members of the
general public.

Joint Organizations

Central Michigan District Health Department — Gladwin, Clare, Arenac, Isabella, Osceola, and
Roscommon counties participate jointly in the operation of the Central Michigan District Health
Department (Health Department). All of the financial operations of the Health Department are
recorded in the records of [sabella County.

The funding formula approved by the member counties is based pro-rata on each unit's
population and equalized valuation to the Health Department’s total population and valuation.
Member counties’ percentages of the net operating budget for the year of 2014 were:

Gladwin 14.00% [sabella 28.00%
Clare 17.00% Osceola 13.00%
Arenac 10.00% Roscommon 18.00%

The County’s appropriation to the Health Department for the year ended December 31, 2014 was
$180,877.

Central Michigan Communitv Mental lealth Services Board — The Central Michigan
Community Mental Heaith Services Board (Services Board) reorganized as a Community Mental
Health Authority under Public Act 238 of 1974, as amended. The Services Board has
representatives and provides services to Isabella, Mecosta, Osceola, Clare, Midland, and
Gladwin counties, All participating counties provide annual appropriations; however, none of the
participating counties are financially responsible for the Board.

[he Services Board is legally separate from the County; however, it has not met the financial
accountability criteria. For this reason, it is not considered a component unit of the County.

The County's appropriation to the Services Board for the year ended December 31, 2014 was
$92,563.
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continucd)

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B. Reporting Entity (continued)

Related Organization

Northern Michigan Substance Abuse Services, Inc. — The County, in conjunction with 31 other
counties, has entered into an agreement which created Northern Michigan Substance Abuse
Services, Inc. This organization’s board is composed of one member appointed by the board of
commisstoners from each of the participating counties.

C. Basis of presentation — government-wide financial statements

While secparate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are
interrelated. The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds,
while business-type activities incorporate data from the County’s enterprise funds. Secparate
financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary tunds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

As discussed carlier, the County has five discretely presented component units. While not all are
considered to be a major component unit, they are nevertheless shown in separate columns in the
government- wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

D. Basis of presentation — fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s [unds, including its
liduciary funds and biended component unit.  Separate statements for cach fund category—
governmental, proprictary, and fiduciary—are presented.  The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, cach displayed in a separate column.
All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.
Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
ttnancial statements.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the County, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Emergency Medical Services Fund accounts for funds raised by a special tax levy to
maintain emergency medical services to County citizens.

The £-911 Milluge Fund accounts for funds raised by a special tax levy to maintain L-911
services to County citizens.

The Senior Citizens Program Fund accounts for funds raised by a special tax levy to
maintain and expand services to older citizens of the County.



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continucd)

D. Basis of presentation — fund financial statements (continued)

The Wireless E-911 Millage Fund accounts for funds raised by a special tax levy to maintain
E-911 services to County citizens.

The County reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Unallocated Tax Revolving Fund accounts for the purchase and collection of delinquent
taxes.

The 2014 Tax Revolving Fund accounts for the purchase of delinquent taxes from other local
taxing units and the subsequent collection of those taxes receivable.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Private purpose trust funds account for arrangements to accumulate resources held in trust
for specific purposes, such as inmates at the jail.

Agency funds are used to account for assets held for other governments in an agency
capacity, including tax collections.

During the course of operations the County has activity between funds for various purposes.
Any residual balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and
advances to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements,
certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.
Balances between the funds included in governimental activities (i.c.. the governmental funds)
are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental
activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities
(i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal
balances in the business-type activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transters of resources between funds.
In tund linancial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers infout.
While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations arc made in the preparation of
the government-wide financial statements.  Transfers between the funds included in
governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the
governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type
activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type
activities column.

E. ¥ecasurement focus and basis of accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being
measured such as current financial resources or economic resources.  The basis of accounting
indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statemnents.
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E. Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued)

The government-wide financial stalements are reported using the economic resources’
measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when camed and

expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and

similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the

provider have been met.

The governmental fund [inancial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement tocus and the modified acerual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to pay liabilitics of the
current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available il they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incwred. as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and clims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property laxcs, sales taxes, [ranchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period arc ull considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been rccopnized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitiements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility
requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the
period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end).
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during
the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end).
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the County.

The proprictary and private-purpose trust funds are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The agency lund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for
repurting its assets and liabilities.

R
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

F. Budgetary Accounting

Budgetary basis of accounting

The General Fund and special revenue funds operate under formal budgetary control. A general
appropriation budget is prepared in accordance with Michigan Public Act 2 of 1968, as amended,
and the budgetary document is submitted annually by the Finance Committee which
recommends formal adoption by the County Board. Budgets presented in the financial
statements are prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting and encompass all
amendments.

Budgetary control is exercised at the activity level. The Finance Committee is authorized to
make budget transfers within these funds at the activity level.

The County Board is authorized to make and has made supplemental appropriation adjustments
to the budget during the year as deemed necessary at the levels of budgetary control as noted
above. These adjustments are reflected in the budget amounts in the financial statements. All
encumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the year.

Excess of expenditures over appropriations
The following funds had excess of expenditures over appropriation at the legal level of budgetary
control:

Budget
Final Budget Actual Variance
General Fund
Health and welfare:

Soldiers and sailors h - $ 8,267 $ (8,267)
Recreation and culture:

Parks and recreation 2,404 2,406 (2)

Law library - 10,938 (10,938)
Other:

Employee retirement - 30,000 (30,000)
Capital outlay 144,584 209,994 (65,410)
Emergency Medical Services Fund
Health and welfare:

Emergency medical services - 702,036 (702,036)

E-911 Millage Fund
Public safety:
Emergency 911 services - 49,610 (49,610)

Lad
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Wireless E-911 Millage Fund
Public safety:
Emergency 911 services g g $ 40,087 S (40,087)

Senior Citizens Program Fund
flealth and welfare:
Senior citizens programs - 483,321 (483,321)

G. Asscts, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund
Balance

Cash and cash equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which
approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at
the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. [nvestments that do not have an established
market are reported at estimated fair value.

Inventory and prepaid items

Inventory in the Road Commission component unit, consisting of various operating parts,
supplies and road materials, is valued at cost, as determined on the average unit cost method.
Inventory items are charged to road construction and maintenance, cquipment repairs and
operations as they are used. Inventory in the Gladwin City-County Transit component unit is
valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to
future years and are recorded as prepaid expenses or expenditures in the government-wide and
fund statermnents.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in
the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

[n the Drain Commission component unit and the Road Commission component unit,
infrastructure includes only those infrastructure assets acquired subscquent to January 1, 2004.



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated usetul hives:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 30 years
Equipment and furniture 310 10 years
Vehicles and boats 3to 12 vears
infrastructure (drains and roads) 5 to 50 years

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deterred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement, deferred outflows
of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure} until then. The County
has no items that qualify for reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and governmental funds balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement clement, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. The County has several types of items that qualify for reporting in this category. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues, which arise only under a modified accrual basis
of accounting, from property taxes and accounts receivable. These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an intlow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. In
addition, deferred inflows of resources are reported in the government-wide and governmental
fund financial statements for property taxes levied during the year that were intended to finance
future periods. The component units also report defcrred inflows of resources for property taxes
and special assessments levied for a subsequent period, as well as unavaitable revenues for
special assessments.

Net position {low assumption

Sometimes the County will fund outlays tor a particular purpose from both restricted (c.g..
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to caleulate the amounts
to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide and
proprictary fund financial statements, a tlow assumption must be made about the order in which
the resources are considered to be applied.

It is the County's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted belore
unrestricted net position 1s applied.

Fund balance flow assumptions

Sometimes the County will tund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed. assigned. and unassigned fund balance). In order
to caleulate the amounts to report as restricted, committed. assigned. and unassigned fund
balance in the governmental [und financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the
order in which the resources are considered (o be applied.
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continucd)

It is the County’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using
any of the components of unrestricted fund balance.  Further, when the components of
anrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose. committed lund balance is depleted
first. lollowed by assigned tund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applicd last.

Fund balance policies
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes.

Governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance for amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually require to be maintained
intact.

Restricted fund balance is reported when externally imposed constraints are placed on the use of
the resources by grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed fund balance is reported for amounts that can be used for specific purposes pursuant
to constraints imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision making
authority, the County Board. A formal resolution of the County Board is required to establish,
modify or rescind a fund balance commitment.

Assigned fund balance is reported for amounts that are constrained by the County’s intent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance is available for any purpose. The General Fund is the only fund that
reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. Unassigned balances also include ncgative
balances in the governmental funds reporting resources restricted for specific programs.

H. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Program revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benetit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given [unction
or segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements ol a particular function or scgment. All taxes,
including those dedicated for specitic purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

Property tuaxes

County general operating property taxes are levied annually on July 1 (the lien date) to fund
operations for the current year. The property taxes are due in (ull within nine months (prior to
March 1), at which time uncollected taxes became delinquent. [he assessed value of real and
personal property is established by the local units. accepted by the County and equalized under
State statute at approximately 50% of the current estimated market value.  In March 1994,
Michigan voters approved Proposal A, which requires property Lases to be levied based on the
axable value of the underlying property. Annual increases in taxable value are limited to the
lesser of 3% or the rate of inflation.

L
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Gladwin County
Notes (o Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

H. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (continued)

Property taxes (continued)

Taxable value reverts 10 50% of true cash value when the property is sold. Taxable value is
determined by using such factors as equalized, assessed and capped values, along with a value
change multiplier.

The taxable value of real and personal property for the July 1, 2014 general operating levy was
$£929.0 million. The general operating tax rate for this fevy was at the maximum rate of 4.4052
mills, as adjusted by the FHeadlee Amendment to the State of Michigan Constitution. The County
also had voter approved taxes of 0.5000 mills for senior citizen programs and 0.7500 for 911
services on the December 1. 2013 voter-approved levy.

By agreement with various taxing authorities. the County purchases at face value the real
property taxes returned delinquent cach March | and records a corresponding delinquent taxes
receivable. These reccivables ($1.2 million at December 31, 2014, not including accrued interest
and collection fees) are pledged to a bank for payment of the notes payable; the subsequent
collection of the receivables. interest and collection [ees thercon, and investment earnings are
used to extinguish the debt,

Compensated absences

County employees accumulate compensated leave time in varying amounts depending on length
of service and other factors. All vacation pay and 50% of sick pay are accrued when incurred in
the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements. This liability includes salary-related benefits, where applicable.

Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and cxpenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are collection fees and interest carned on
delinquent taxes. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the fees and charges. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenucs and
expenses.

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Deficit Fund Equity
As of December 31, 2014, the Remonumentation Fund within the nonmajor governmental funds

has a fund balance deficit of $20,055. The reason for the deficit is due to the fact that the fund
spent more in expenditures than they received in state revenue,
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds
A. Deposits and Investments

Statutory Authority
State statutes authorize the County to invest in:

a. Bond, securitics, other obligations and repurchase agreements of the United States, or an
agency or instrumentality of the United States.

b. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or depository receipts of a
qualified linancial institution.

c. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest classitications
established by not less than two standard rating services and that matures not more than
270 days after the date of purchase.

d. Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks.

e. Obligations of the State of Michigan and its political subdivisions that, at the time of
purchase, are rated as investment grade by at least one standard rating service.

f. Mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 with the authority to
purchase only investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by a public
corporation.

g. External investment pools as authorized by Public Act 20 as amended through 12/31/97.

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown in the basic [inancial statements to the
County’s deposits and investments is as follows:

Primary Component
Government  Units Total
Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents hY 4.171,752%  1,935,6818 6,107,433
Investments 2,758,727 1,277,285 4,036,012
Cash on deposit with agent - 145,511 145,511
Fiduciary fund financial statement captions:
Cash and cash equivalents 296,881 - 296,881

§ 7227360 $§ 3,358,477 § 10,585,837

Deposits and investments:

Bank deposits (checking and savings accounts and certificates of deposit) £ 9,652,876
Cash alternative funds 785,030
Cash on hand 2420
Cash on deposit with agent 145,511
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Decposits and Investments (continued)

Investment and Deposit Risk

Interest Rate Risk. State law limits the allowable investments and the maturities of some of the
allowable investments as identitied in the summary of significant accounting policies. The
County’s investment policy does not have specific limits in excess of state law on investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. The cash alternative funds held at year-end are short-term investments with a
maturity under one year.

Credit Risk, State law limits investments to specific government securities, certificates of
deposits and bank accounts with qualified financial institutions, commercial paper with specific
maximum maturities and ratings when purchased, bankers acceptances of specific financial
institutions, qualified mutual funds and qualified external investment pools as identified in the
summary of significant accounting policies. The County’s investment policy does not have
specific limits in excess of state law on investment credit. At year-end, the County’s cash
alternative funds were rated A-1 by Standard and Poor’s and P-1 by Moody’s [nvestors Service.

Custodial Credit Risk ~ Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned. State law does not require and the County
does not have a policy for deposit custodial credit risk. As of year-end approximately
$8,135,000 of the County’s bank balance of approximately $9,400,000 was exposed to custodial
credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in
the event of the failure of the counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State law does
not require and the County does not have a policy for investment custodial credit risk. At year-
end, all investments were held in the County’s name and were not exposed to custodial credit
risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk. State law limits allowable investments but does not limit
concentration of credit risk. The County’s investment policy does not have specific limits in
excess of state law on concentration of credit risk. At year-end, the County had only one
investment: cash alternative funds in the amount of $785,030.



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
B. Capital Assets
Primary Government

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
el 4 Additions Disposals 2014
Governmental activities: -
Capita! assets not being depreciated:
Land § 297,231 § - $ - $ 297,231
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 1,626,331 65,199 - 1,691,330
Equipment and furniture 384,159 - - 384,159
Vehicles and boats 577,526 27,374 . 604,900
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,588,016 92,573 - 2,680,589
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements (1,567,512) (3,460) - (1,570,972)
Equipment and furniture (357,379) (4,635) - (362,014)
Vehicles and boats ~ (436,726) (50,244 - (486,970)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,361,617) (58,339} - (2,419,956)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 226,399 34,234 - 260,633
Governmental activities capital assets, et § 523,630 $ 34234  § - 5 557864

Dcpreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 8,095
Public safety 50,244
$ 38,339
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds {continued)
B. Capital Assets (continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

Activity for the Road Commission for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and improvements
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Road equipment
Garage equipment
Sign shop equipment
Yard equipment
Office equipment
Engineers equipment
[nfrastructure - bridges
[nfrastructure - roads

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Road equipment
Garage equipment
Sign shop equipment
Yard equipment
Office equipment
Engineers equipment
Infrastructure - bridges
Infrastructure - roads

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Balance Balance

January I, December 31,
2014 Additions  Disposals 2014

$ 1,679,645 $ 11,821 § - § 1,691,466
176,904 23,643  (115,502) 85,045
1,856,549 35464  (115,502) 1,776,511
3,096,973 - - 3,096,973
6,231,757 524,098  (233,715) 6,522,140
140,648 - - 140,648
6,590 - - 6,590
85,252 - - 85,252
120,285 - - 120,285
35,088 - - 35,088
3,486,567 527,058 - 4,013,625
23,597,387 3,596,802 - 27,194,189
36,800,547 4,647,958  (233,715) 41,214,790
(1,221,863) (82,363) - (1,304,226)
(5,086,398) (314,713) 230,799 (3,370,314)
(134,894) (3,331) - (138,425)
(6,590) - - (6,590)
(71,382) (3,219) - (74,601)
(118,448) (1,407) - (119,855)
(32,243) (948) - (33,191)
(405,931) (84,412) - (490,343)
(7,248,166) (1,372,361) - (8,620,527)
(14,325,915) (2,062,956) 230,799 (16,158,072)
22,474,632 2,585,002 (2,916) 25,056,718

Road Commission capital assets, net

$24,331,181

$ 2,620,466 $(118,418)

$ 26,833,229
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
B. Capital Assets (continued)
Discretely Presented Component Units (continued)

Activity for the Drain Commission for the year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows:

Balance Balance
January |, December 31,
2014 Additions Disposals 2014
Capital assets being depreciated:

Infrastructure — drains 1,614,421 b - i) - $1,614421
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,614,421 - - 1,614,421
Less accumulated depreciation:

Infrastructure — drains  (64,576) (32,288) - (96,864)
Total accumulated depreciation . (64,576) (32,288) - (96,864)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,549,845 (32,288) - 1,517,556

Drain Commission capital assets, net $1,549,845 $§ (32,288) & - $1,517,556
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Notes to Financial Statemenis (continued)
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
B. Capital Assets (continued)
Discretely Presented Component Units (continued)

Activity for the Transit for the year ended September 30, 2014 was as follows:

Balance Additions  Disposals Balance
October 1, September
2013 30,2014
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $§ 14135 § - 3 - 5 14,135
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 1,402,152 188,802 - 1,590,954
Land improvements 12,600 - - 12,600
Office equipment 149,859 3,518 - 155,377
Bus equipment 50,397 - - 50,397
Buses and other vehicles 1,848,596 01,342 - 1,939,938
Maintenance equipment 129,323 39,610 - 168,933
Total capital assets being depreciated 3,592,927 325,272 - 3,918,199
Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (823,782) (59,580) - (883,362)
Land improvements (12,600) - - (12,600)
Office equipment (119,468) (17,586) - (137,054)
Bus equipment (50,397) - - (50,397)
Buses and other vchicles (1,262,253)  (182,040) - (1,444,293)
Maintenance equipment (82,457) (14,400) - (96,857)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,350,957)  (273,606) - {2,624,563)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,241,970 51,666 - 1,293,636
Transit capital assets, net $1,256,105 § 51,666 § - $1,307,771
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

C. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Long-term advances as of December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Advance
Advance to from Other
Other Funds Funds
Advance to/from other funds:
Unallocated Tax Revelving b - 5 -
2014 Tax Revolving - 120,000
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 266,879 145,000

$ 266,879 $ 265,000

Advances between the various enterprise funds exist to maintain adequate reserves in the
delinquent tax revolving funds until delinquent taxes are collected.

Interfund transfers as of December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Nonmajor 2014 Tax
Governmental  Revolving

Transfers out: General Funds Total
General $ - % 194,000 3 17,507 $ 211,507
E-911 Millage 754,717 - - 754,717
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 104,449 - - 104,449
2014 Tax Revolving 350,000 - - 350,000
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 142,506 - 940,776 1,083,282
Total $1351,672 S 194,000 § 958283 $ 2,503,955

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to
debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service
payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the generaf fund to finance
various programs accounted for in other {unds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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Gladwin County

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

D. Long-Term Debt

Changes in Long-Term Debt

Long-term lability activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds
Compensated absences

Business-type activities:
General obligation limited tax notes
Component Units:
Road Commission:
Instaliment purchase agreements
Bonds payable
Compensated absences

Department of Public Works:
General obligation bonds

Drain Commission:
General obligation notes

Transit (at 9/30/2014):
Compensated absences

Balance
January 1,

2014 Additions Deductions

Balance
December Due Within
One Year

31,2014

3 -5 - 8 :
233,100 227,699  (233,100)

$

- $

227,699

§ 233,100 8 227,699 § (233,100)

$

227,699

2
5 2

27,699
27,699

$ 1,103,000 $2,150,000 $(2,133,000)

$

1,120,000

$1,120,000

$ 215600 5 113925 %
1,375,000 - (110,000)
292,380 34,022 {11,276)

(88,979)

$

240,547
1,265,000
315,126

$

117,334
115,000
24,083

$1,882,981 $ 147,947 § (210,253)

$

1,820,673

$ 256,417

§ 610,0008 - $§ (75,000)

$

535,000

5

80,000

$1,515,000 35 - § (95,000)

$

1,420,000

5

95,000

$§ 28,6938 31,775 5 (28,693)

$

31,775

$

31,775




Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
D. Long-Term Debt (continued)
Primary Government

General obligation and revenue bonds and notes are direct obligations and pledge the Tull faith
and credit of the government, These bonds are generally issued as 5 to 20-year serial bonds with
varying amounts of principal maturing cach year. General obligation and revenue bonds and
notes currently outstanding arc as follows:

Interest
Purpose Rates Amount
Business-type activities 0.75-1.05%  $ 1,120,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation and revenue bonds and notes
are as follows:

Business-type Activities
Year Ending
December 31 Principal  Interest
2015 $ 1,120,000 § 5,000

Component Units
Road Commission

Michigan Transportation Bonds are issued by the Road Commission to finance construction
projects and are direct obligations, pledging the full faith and credit of the County and the Road
Commission. The bonds are issued as 20-year serial bonds with varying amounts of principal
maturing cach year through 2024 and bear interest at varying rates from 1.84% to 4.15%. The
installment purchase agreements bear interest from 3.3% to 5.75%. Title to the equipment is
transferred to the lessor at the end of the lease.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Michigan Transportation bonds and installment
purchase agreements are as follows:

Year Ending

December 31 Principal Interest
2015 § 2323345 28,884
2016 162,992 23,384
2017 164,363 19,803
2018 156,561 16,242
2019 649,297 42,765

2020-2024 140,000 1,288

§ 1,305,547 § 132,363
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
D. Long-Term Debt (continued)
Department of Public Works

General obligation bonds are issued by the County to finance construction projects managed and
administered by the Department of Public Works. These bonds are direct obligations, pledging
the full faith and credit of the County and the City of Gladwin. The bonds are issued as serial
bonds with varying amounts of principal maturing each year through November 2020 and
bearing interest at rates from 3.95% to 5.4%.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Yecar Ending

December 31 Principal Interest
2015 $ 80,000 § 23,708
2016 85,000 20,268
2017 85,000 16,570
2018 90,000 12,830
2019 95,000 8,825
2020 100,000 4,550

5 535,000 $ 86,751

Drain Commission

General obligation drain improvement bonds and notes are issued by the County to finance
certain drainage district construction projects. General obligation bonds have been issued for
governmental activities. These bonds and notes are direct obligations, pledging the full faith and
credit of the County and the respective drainage districts. The bonds are generally issued as 10 to
20-year serial bonds with varying amounts of principal maturing each year and bear interest rates
varying from 4.14% to 6%.

Year Ending

December 31 Principal Interest
2015 $ 95,000 § 75,278
2016 75,000 70,813
2017 75,000 66,688
2018 75,000 62,563
2019 100,000 57,750

2020-2024 500,000 206,250

2025-2029 500,000 68,750

$ 1,420,00085 608,092
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Notes to Financial Statements (continucd)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
D. Long-Term Debt (continued)
Advance Refunding

On July 26, 2007, the Department of Public Works component unit advance refunded the 1996
Water and Sewer general obligation bonds (original issue amount of $1,525,000) with Series
1997 Water and Sewer general obligation bonds. The Department of Public Works issued
$1,005,000 of general obligation bonds to provide an escrow agent with the resources for all
future debt service payments of the refunded debt. As a result, the refunded bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the statement of net position.
The balance of the defeased debt outstanding at December 31, 2014 was $710,000.

in October 2012, the Road Commission component unit issued Michigan Transportation Fund
Bonds in the amount of $1,285,000. Proceeds from this bond issue, along with a contribution
from the Road Commission of $10,818, were used to advance refund Michigan Transportation
Fund Bonds issued in 2004. The refunded bonds mature as scheduled through February 2024.
The balance of the defeased debt outstanding at December 31, 2014, was $1,180,000. As a
result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from
the statement of net position.

E. Fuad Balances by Purpose

Following is more detailed information on the governmental funds’ fund balances:

Emergency Senior Nonmajor
General Medical E-911 Wireless Citizens  Governmental
Fund  Services Millage E-911 Program Funds Total

Nonspendable for:
Advances to

component units  $ 6,300 $ -$ - 3§ -8 - ) - § 6,300
Restricted for:
Judicial - - - - - 138,830 138,830
General

government - - - - - 61,475 61,475
Public safety - 1,686,725 881,008 799,301 - 156,327 3,523,361
Public works - = - = - 11,301 11,301
Health and welfare = - - - 168,452 211,396 379,848

Community and
economic
development - - 5 - . 51,204
Recreation and

culture - - R i} . B
Capital outlay - - - . : .
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on Al Funds (continued)

E. Fund Balances by Purpaose (continued)

Emergency Senior Nonmajor
General  Medical E-911  Wireless Citizens Governmental
Fund Services  Millage  E-911  Program Funds Total

Assigned to:

Judicial - - - - 13,233 13,233
General

government - - - - - -

Public safety - - - - 12,305 12,303

Health and weltare 14,559 g = = 3,453 28.012

Community and

cconomic

development - - - - 58,397 58,397

Recreation and

culture 706 - - - - 706
Unassigned 036,824 - - - - 936,824

$958,389 5 1,686,725 $ 881,008 $799,301 $168.452 $ 727921 $5,221.796

For the low assumption policy regarding use of fund balance types, refer to Note 1G.

F. Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Primary Government

Plan Description — The County’s defined benelit pension plan, the Gladwin County Employces
Retirement Plan, provides retirement and disability benelits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benetits to plan members and beneficiaries. The County participates in the Municipal
Employees Retirement System of Michigan {MERS), an agent multiple-employer plan
administered by the MERS Retirement Board. Act No. 427 of the Public Acts of 1984, as
amended, cstablishes and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS. MERS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information (RSI) for MERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the
Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan, 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing. Michigan
48917 or by calling (800) 767-6377.

Funding Policy - The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate: the
current rate is 8.84-28.96% of annual covered payroll for employecs, depending upon the
applicable division/union. Employees are required to contribute 3.80% of their annual covered
payroll to the plan. The contribution requirements of the County are established by Act No. 427
of the Public Acts of 1984, as amended, and may be amended by the Retirement Board of
MERS. The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by
the County Board.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued})
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
F. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued)
Primary Government (continued)

Annual Pension Cost (APC) = The County’s APC and net pension asset for the current year
were as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC) h) 546,984
Less: interest on net pension assct (8,732)
Plus: adjustment to the ARC 10,844
APC 549,097
Contributions made 523,929
Decrease in nct pension asset 25,168
Net pension asset, beginning of year 194,035
Net pension asset, end of year 9 168,867

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the County’s APC of $549,097 for MERS was more than
the County’s required contribution, and more than the actual contributions made. Actual
contributions to MERS for the year ended December 31, 2014 amounted to $523,929. The
required contribution was determined as part of the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation using
the entry age actuarial cost methed. The actuarial assumptions included (a) a rate of return on
the investment of present and future assets of 8.0%, (b) projected salary increases of 4.5% per
year compounded annually, attributable to inflation, and (c) additional projected salary increases
of 0.0% to 8.40% per year, depending on age, attributable to seniority/merit. The actuarial value
of MERS assets was determined on the basis of a valuation method that assumes the fund carns
the expected rate of return, and includes an adjustment to reflect fair value. The County’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2013,
the date of the latest actuarial valuation, was 25 years.

Three-Year Trend Information
Percentage Net
Year of APC Pension
Ending APC  Contributed Asset
12/3172012 3 501,268 105.6% $ 196,171
12/31/2013 530,522 99.6% 194,035
12/31/2014 549,097 95.4% 168,867
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Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
F. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued)

Primary Government (continued)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Funded Percentage of
Valuation Value of Liability (AAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Assets (a) - Entry Age (b) UAAL (b-a)  (a/b) Payroll (¢} ((b-a)/c)
12/31/20128 13,727,149 S 17,548,995 § 3,821,846 80% $ 3,522,473 108%
12/31/2013% 14,358,987 $§ 19,116,274 $§ 4,757,287 75% § 3,606,038 132%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RS following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets
is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

Component Units
Road Commission

Plan Description — The Road Commission’s defined benefit pension plan provides retirement
and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. The Road Commission participates in the MERS, an agent multiple-employer
plan administered by the Retirement Board of MERS. Act No. 427 of the Public Acts of 1984, as
amended, establishes and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS. MERS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for MERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal
Employees Retirement System of Michigan, 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 48917 or
by calling (800) 767-6377.

Funding Policy — The Road Commission is required to contribute at an actuarially determined
rate; the rate required during the year was 4.24% for Commissioners. In addition, the Road
Commission was required to contribute a monthly fixed dollar amount of $34,339 for general
employees. Road Commission employees are required to contribute 3% of their first $4,200 of
annual covered payroll and 5% of their annual covered payroll in excess of $4,200 to the plan.
The contribution requirements of the Road Commission are established by Act No. 427 of the
Public Acts of 1984, as amended, and may be amended by the Retirement Board of MERS. The
contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the Board of
County Road Commissioners.
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds {continued)
F. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued)
Component Units (continued)

Road Commission (continued)

APC — For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Road Commission’s APC of $412,797 for
MERS was $2,021 less than the Road Commission’s required contribution and $52,021 less than
the actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the December 31,
2012, actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8.0%, (b) projected
salary increases of 4.5% per ycar compounded annually, attributable to inflation, and (c)
additional projected salary increases ot 0.0% to 8.40% per year, depending on age, attributable to
seniority/merit. The actuarial value of MERS assets was determined on the basis of a valuation
method that assumes the fund earns the expected rate of return, and includes an adjustment to
reflect fair value. The Road Commission’s UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization peried at December 31, 2013, the
date of the latest actuarial valuation, was 25 years.

Three-Year Trend Information

Pereentage of Net
Year APC Pension
Ending APC Contributed Asset
12/31/2012 S 287,139 117% $ 50,000
12/31/2013 386,957 112% 101,074
12/31/2014 412,797 113% 153,095

Funding Status and Funding Progress — As of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the plan was 60% funded. The AAL for bencfits was 314,043,434 and the
actuarial value of assets was $8,373,139, resulting in a UAAL of $5,668,345. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employecs covered by the plan) was $1,318,220, and the ratio of
the UAAL to the covered payroll was 430%.

Transit

Plan Description — The Transit participates in the MERS, an agent multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan that covers all eligible employces of the Housing Commission including
Transit employees. The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan
participants and their beneficiaries. MERS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the system, That report
may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan, 1134
Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 48917 or by calling (800) 767-6377.



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
F. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continucd)
Component Units (continued)

Transit (continued)

Funding Policy — The obligation to contribute to and maintain the plan was ¢stablished by the
Housing Commission on November 8, 2003, by resolution of the Board. The Plan requires a 5%
contribution by the employees to the plan. The Housing Commission is required to contribute
based on an actuarially determined rate.

APC - The Transit’s APC and net pension asset for the current year were as follows:

ARC s 38,859
Less: interest on net pension asset (43,590)
Plus: adjustment to the ARC 30,453
APC 25,722
Contributions made 138,860
Increase in net pension asset 113,138
Net pension asset, beginning of year 344,869
Net pension asset, end of year $ 638,007

For the year ended September 30, 2014, the Transit’s APC of $25,722 for the plan was less than
the Transit’s required contribution, and less than the actual contributions made. Actual
contributions to MERS for the year ended September 30, 2014 amounted to $138,860. The ARC
was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at December 31, 2013, using the entry age
normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions include, (1) an 8.0% investment rate of
return, (2) projected salary increases of 4.3% per year for inflation, plus a percentage based upon
an age-related scale to reflect merit, and longevity, and (3) the assumption that benefits will not
increase after retirement. The funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at
actuarially determined rates that, expressed as a percenlage of annual covered payroll, are
designed to accumulate sufficient asscts to pay benefits when due. The normal cost and
amortization payment for the year was determined using an attained age actuarial funding
method. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis. UAALs, if any, are amortized as a level percentage of payroll over a period of 28 years.

The following three year trend information is presented for the Transit only, while the schedule
of funding progress is presented for the cntire Housing Commission.

- Three-Yeur Trend Information

Percentage of Net
Year APC Pension
Ending APC Contributed Asset
9/30/2012 § 21,801 139% $ 434,395
9/30/2013 18,822 156% 544.869
9/30/2014 25,722 151% 658,007



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

F. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued)

Component Units (continued)
Transit (continued)

Schedule of Funding Progress

UAAL asa

Actuarial  Actuarial Funded Percentage of
Valuation  Value of AAL - Entry Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Assets (a) Age (b) UAAL (b-a) (a/b) Payroll (¢} ((b-a)/c)
12/31/72011  $1,968,374 $2,853,533 $885,159 69% $549,749 161%
12/31/2012 2,117,337 2,970,019 852,682 71% 581,261 147%
12/31/2013 2,377,402 3,120,428 743,026 76% 608,987 122%

G. Postemployment Health Benelfits
Primary Government

Plan Description - The County sponsors a single employer defined benetit retiree health care
plan (Plan) to all employees provided proper application is made prior to retirement and the
employee is a member of the Plan on the date of retircment. The County reimburses the amount
of validated claims for medical, dental and hospitalization costs incurred by pre-Medicare
retirees and their dependents based upon the cmployee’s number of years of service.
Expenditures for postretirement healthcare benetits are recognized as retirees report claims. As
of December 31, 2014, the County has not advance funded any portion of the liability.
Therefore, financial statements for the plan are not prepared nor are they included in the financial
statements of any other plan or the primary government.

Funding Policy — The County has no obligation to make contributions in advance of when the
insurance premiums or benefits are duc for payment; therefore, the Plan may be financed on a
pay-as-you-go basis. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the County contributed $212,318
to the plan for current premiums and no additional amount to prefund benefits.

Funding Progress - For the year ended December 31, 2014, the County estimated the cost of
providing retiree healthcare benefits through an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2010.
Such valuation computes the ARC that represents a level of funding, that if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover the normal cost cach year and amortize any UAALs (or funding
excess) over a period of 27 years.

As ol December 31, 2010, the date of the latest actuarial valuation, participants in the Plan
consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 53
Active employees 95..
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Notes to Financial Statcments (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continucd)
G. Postemployment Benefits (continued)
Primary Government (continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedules of funding progress,
presented as RSI following the notes to financial statements, will present multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial values of the Plan assets are increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

The benefit obligation represents the actuarial present value of those estimated future benefits
that are attributed to employee service rendered Decemnber 31. Postretirement benefits include
future benefits expected to be paid to or for (1) currently retired or terminated employees and
dependents (as defined by the Plan) and (2) active employees and their beneficiaries and
dependents after retirement from service. Prior to an active employee’s full eligibility date, the
postretirement benefit obligation is the portion of the expected postretirement benefit obligation
that is attributed to that employee’s service rendered to the valuation date.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between
the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

The Plan’s unfunded accrued liability was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the
Plan as of December 31, 2010. Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the Plan’s
unfunded accrued liability included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future
assets of 4.5% per year compounded annually after net investment expenses, (b) projected salary
increases of 4.5% per ycar compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional
projected salary increases ranging [rom 0.3% to 8.4% per year, depending on age, attributable to
seniority/merit, and (d) health care cost increases of 10% in 2010 and scaling down by 0.75%
every year until it is 4,5% for 2018 and beyond.
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G. Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Primary Government (continued)

ARC S 610,430
Interest on the prior year's net other postemployment
benefits (OPEB) obligation 86,552
Less adjustment to the ARC ~(107,495)
Annual OPEB cost (589,486)
Amount contributed 212,318
Increase in net OPEB obligation 377,168
OPEB obligation (asset) - beginning of ycar 1,923,370
OPEB obligation (asset) - end of year § 2,300,538
Three-Year Trend Information
Year Ended Percentage
December 31, ARC Contributed
2012 $ 560,028 42%
2013 585,229 46%
2014 610,430 35%

A schedule of funding progress is as follows:

Schedule of Funding Progress

UAALasa
Actuarial  Actuarial Funded Percentage of
Valuation Valueof  AAL - Entry UAAL Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Assets (a) Age (b) {b-a) {a/b) Payroll (¢) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/2010 % -$ 6,644,136 % (6,644,136) 0% §3,596,473 -185%

The foregoing assumptions are based on the presumption that the Plan will continue. Were the
Plan to terminate, different actuarial assumptions and other factors might be applicable in
determining the actuarial present value of the postretirement accrued liability.



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G. Postemployment Benefits (continued)
Component Units

Road Commission

Plan Description — The Road Commission provides healthcare and prescription drug benefits to
all full-time employees hired prior to August 19, 2009 upon retirement, in accordance with labor
contracts, The plan is a single cmployer defined benefit public retiree healthcare plan
administered by the Board of County Road Commissioners. The benefits are provided under
labor contracts and may be amended by the Board of County Road Commissioners through labor
negotiations. Beginning during the year ended December 31, 2012, the Road Commission has
advance funded a portion of the liability. Therefore financial statements for the trust fund used
to account for these assets of the plan are included in the financial statement of the Road
Commission.

Employees hired atter August 19, 2009 who retire for any reason, will not be eligible for health
insurance, dental insurance, vision insurance, life insurance, or the hearing aid rider. These
employees will be required to contribute a minimum of one percent (1%) of their pay through
payroll deduction to a Healthcare Savings Program (HSCP) through MERS. The Road
Commission will also contribute a maximum amount equal to one percent (1%) of an employee’s
pay to an employee’s HCSP.

Currently 27 retirees, including 18 Medicare qualified retirees, are eligible. The Road
Commission includes retirees and their spouses in its insured healthcare plan. Previous eligible
employees who retired on or before October 31, 2005 are not required to contribute to their
healthcare plan, in accordance with labor contracts. Previous cligible employees who retired
after October 31, 2005 are required to contribute monthly to their healthcare plans in the same
amounts as required for active employees, in accordance with labor contracts. The monthly
contribution amounts for eligible retirees and active employees vary based on the single, two-
person, and family coverage, and will also vary each year based on the cost of healthcare.

Effective July t, 2012, the employer’s contribution towards healthcare cannot exceed those
amounts permitted by Public Act 152 (PA 152) of 2011; Publicly Funded Health Insurance
Contribution Act, with maximum amounts revised July 1* of each year. Eligible retirees and
active employees are required to contribute monthly towards healthcare costs that exceed
employer amounts allowed under PA 152.

Expenditures for postemployment healthcare benefits are recognized as the insurance premiums
become due.
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G. Postemployment Benefits (continued)
Component Units (continued)

Road Cemmission (continued)

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members and the Road Commission are
cstablished by labor contracts and may be amended by the Board of County Road
Commissioners through labor negotiations. The required contribution is based on projected pay-
as-you-go financing requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits as determined
by the Board of County Road Commissioners. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Road
Commission contributed $255,728 to the plan for current premiums and $25,000 as an additional
amount to prefund benefits.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The Road Commission’s annual OPEB cost
(expense) is calculated based on the ARC, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any UAALSs (or
funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the Road Commission’s annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in the Road Commission’s net
OPEB obligation to the plan:

ARC $ 1,278,363
[nterest on the prior year's net OPEB obligation 134,773
Less adjustment to the ARC (715,476)
Annuat OPEB cost 697,660
Amount contributed:

Payments of current premiums (255,728)

Advance tfunding (25,000)
increase in net OPEB obligation 416,932
OPEB obligation (asset) - beginning of ycar 2,994,966
OPEB obligation (asset) - end of year S 3,411,898

Three-Year Trend Information
Percentage of

Year Ended Annuai Annual OPEB Net OPEB

December 31, OPER Cost  Cost Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 780,625 57% $ 2,530,768
2013 787,665 41% 2,994,966
2014 697,660 41% 3,411,898



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G. Postemployment Benefits (continucd)
Component Units (continued)

Road Commission (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress — The funded status of the plan as of December 31, 2012
(the most recent valuation date) was as follows:

AAL b3 15,233,388
Actuarial value of plan assets 25,000
UAAL $ 15,208,388
Funded ratio 0.16%
Annual covered payroll (12/31/12) $ 1,378,026
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 1,104%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARC of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benelfits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members)
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations. The following simplifying assumptions were
made:

Retirement age for active employees — Based on the historical average retirement age for the
covered group, active plan members were assumed to retire at various ages ranging from 55 to
65. These assumptions are consistent with the first subsequent year in which the member would
qualify for benefits. Employees of the Road Commission are cligible to participate in the Retiree
Health Care Plan upon retirement at age 55 with 30 years of service, age 60 with 25 years of
service or age 62 with any years of service.

Marital status — Marital status of members at the calculation date was assumed to continue
throughout retirement.



Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G. Postemployment Benefits (continued)
Component Units (continued)

Road Commission (continued)

Mortality — Life expectancies were based on mortality tables from the United States Social
Security Administration. The 2009 Period Life Table for males and females was used.

Turnover — Non-group-specitic age based turnover data from GASB Statement No. 45 were used
as the basis for assigning active members a probability of remaining cmployed until the assumed
retirement age and for developing an expected future working lifetime assumption for purposes
of allocating to periods the present vatue of total benefits to be paid.

Healthcare cost trend rate — The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums was
based on projections of the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services. A rate of 5.2% initially, with gradual fluctuations up to 6.6% through 2019 was used.

Healthcare premiums — Health insurance premiums for employees and retirces that were paid in
2011 were used as the basis for calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

Inflation rate — The expected long-term inflation assumption of 2.8% was based on projected
changes in the Consumer Price [ndex for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W) in
the 2012 Annual Report of the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old-Age and Survivors
Insurance and Federal Disability Insurance Trust Funds for an intermediate growth scenario.

Payroll growth rate — The expected long-term payroll growth rate was assumed to equal the rate
of inflation.

Transit

As authorized by the Housing Commission Board, the Ilousing Commission has elected to
provide postemployment healthcare benefits to certain reticees. The Housing Commission’s
employees become cligible for postemployment healtheare benefits if they retire with 30 years of
service at the Housing Commission. Currently, two retirees are eligible to receive healtheare
benefits from the Transit. The Housing Commission pays 90% of the cost of the health insurance
coverage for these retirees. The amount expensed for the year ended September 30, 2014 was
$18.038.

The Housing Commission is required by GASB Statement No. 45 to make contributions into a
trust to cover the future costs of providing postemployment benefits. However, due to the
substantial cost to obtain an actuarial valuation and establish such a trust, coupled with the
immateriality of the annual costs of providing such coverage, the IHousing Commission has
elected 1o continue to fund this plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. The effects of noncompliance with
GASB Statement No. 43 are not materiat 1o the Transit and the Housing Commission as a whole.
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Gladwin County
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
H. Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions
and employece injuries (workers compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to
employees. The County manages risk through the purchase of commercial insurance.

Liability, Vehicle Physical Damage, and Property and Crime — The County is a member of
the Michigan Municipal Liability and Property Pool, which is an association organtzed to
purchase commercial insurance for protection against loss for Michigan cities, counties,
townships and special service governments. The County is insured up to the following limits:
Liability - $5,000,000, vehicle physical damage - $5,000,000 and property and crime -
$5,000,000, subject to deductibles of $1,000, $100 - $250 and $1,000, respectively. The County
is not subject to supplemental premium assessments by the association.

Workers' Compensation — The County purchases coverage through the Michigan Municipal
Workers' Compensation Fund. The Fund is authorized by State law to provide its members with
coverage required by the Workers” Disabitity Compensation Act. Claims are subject to a
maximum limit of $500,000 per occurrence.

Federal Financial Assistance — It is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT) that the county road commissioners report total Federal financial assistance for
highway research, planning, and construction pertaining to their county. During the year ended
December 31, 2014, the Federal aid received and expended by the Road Commission was
$1,042.463 for contracted projects and $0 for negotiated projects. Contracted projects are
defined as projects performed by private contractors paid for and administered by MDOT (they
are included in MDOT’s Single Audit). Negotiated projects are projects where the Road
Commission administers the grant and either performs the work or contracts it out. The Road
Commission would be subject to Single Audit requirements if it expended $500,000 or more for
negotiated projects.

I. Contingencies and Pending Litigation

The County has been named as a defendant in various litigation involving lawsuits pending and
notices of intent to file suit. Management and legal counsel of the County expect no material
losses in excess of insurances should an unfavorable outcome prevail. No provision for any loss
has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

Under the terms of various Federal and State grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Such
grants could fead to reimbursement to the grantor agencics. However, County management does
not believe such disallowances, if any, will be material to the financial position of the County.

0l



Gladwin County

Required Supplementary Information

Defined Benelit Pension Plan (MERS) Schedute of Funding Progress and Employer
Contributions

Historical Trend Intormation - Unaudited

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial

Valuation Actuarial Excessas a
Date Accrued Percentage

December  Actuarial Value Liability (AAL) Funded Unlunded Covered  of Covered
31, of Plan Assels Entry Age Ratio AAL (UAAL) Payroll Payroil
2007 § 10,480,689 $ 13,186,000 79% $ 2705311 § 3,496,563 77%
2008 11,073,667 14,412,994 T7% 3,339,327 3,516,506 95%
2009 11,695,225 £4,790,653 79% 3,095,428 3,537,583 §8%
2010 12,344,322 15,318,783 81% 2974,461 3,596,473 83%
2011 13,177,411 16,398,988 80% 3,221,377 3,528,883 91%
2012 13,727,149 17,548,995 78% 3.821,846 3,522,473 108%
2043 14,358.987 19,116,274 75% 4,757,287 3,606,038 132%

Schedule of Emplover Contributions

Annual

Year Ended Required Percentage

December 31,  Contribution  Contributed
2008 $ 470,266 1009%
2009 472,655 100%
2010 492 487 100%
2011 497 468 134%
2012 499,439 106%
2013 528,386 100%



Gladwin County
Required Supplementary Information
Postemployment Health Benetits Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions
Historical Trend Information - Unaudited

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial

Valuation Actuarial Excess asa
Date Actuarial Accrued Excess of Percentage

December  Value of Liability (AAL)  Funded AAL Over Covered  of Covered
31, Plan Assets  Entry Age Ratio Assets Payroll Payroll
2007 5 - $ 6,628,963 0% $(6,628,963) § 3,496,563 -190%
2010 - 6,644,136 0% (6,644,136) 3,596,473 -185%

Schedule of Emplover Contributions

Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage
December 31, Contribution Contributed
2009 $ 602,458 35%
2010 629,568 34%
2011 535,912 41%
2012 560,028 42%
2013 585,229 46%

The information presented in the supplemental schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation

(December 31, 2010) follows:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate
Projected salary increases
Valuation health care cost trend rate

Individual entry age
Level percent open
27 years

Market value

6.0 percent per year
12.9 percent - 4.8 percent
9 percent in 2012, grading to 4.5 percent in 2021
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Revenues

Property taxes and related fees

Licenses and permits
Federal revenue

State revenue

Charges for services
[nterest earnings
Reimbursements

Donations and contributions
Miscellaneous

Fotal revenues

Expenditures
Legislative:
Board of commissioners
Judicial:
Circuit court
District court
District court - P.1LT.
Friend of the court
Jury commission
Probate court
Circuit court probation
General government:
Elections
Budget
Clerk
Equalization
Prosecuting attorney
Register of deeds
Treasurer
Cooperative extension
Data processing
Building and grounds
Drain commissioner
Audit services
Duplicator
F'elephone contract
Mail department
Public safety:
Sheriff
Iraffic enforcement grant
Secondary road patrol
Marine division
Courthouse security

Gladwin County
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
Year ended December 31, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Nepative)
$(3,966,902) §(4,420,959) $4,572294 S5 8,993,233
(299,985) (321,200) 306,710 627,910
(217,000) (232,703) 318,546 551,249
(852,433) {942,130) 085,054 1,927,234
(1,383,832)  (1,590,909) 1460881 3,051,790
(2.250) (4,740) 4,767 9,507
(159,600) (273,332) 240,990 514,322
(45,400) (136,583) 128,324 264,907
(6,927,424)  (7,922,606) 8,017,366 15,940,172
125,449 174,643 161,884 12,761
399,252 404,507 376919 27,588
439,032 490,885 484,772 6,113
23,940 14,021 8,942 5,079
291,472 327,932 304,960 22972
500 500 390 i10
326,895 343,950 339,080 6,870
3,500 3,540 3,046 494
69,600 73,796 73,792 4
303,084 302,177 300,112 2,065
129,558 130,377 126,606 3,771
361,044 361,360 348,198 13,162
145,569 149,321 148,626 693
235,602 236,753 234476 2277
21,325 43,094 38,439 9,655
91,230 121,522 111,279 10,243
226,335 133,257 241,334 11,923
45,788 46,496 43,156 3,340
29,000 29,000 27.800 1,200
33,400 61,310 60,871 439
1,500 1,300 1,248 252
29,600 43,401 44,397 1,004

1,121,468 1,208,572 1,199,797 8,77
- 1,213 1,212 |
31,598 84.622 84,380 42
- 747 746 l
38,600 43,404 43,298 106



Gladwin County

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budyet Budget Actual {Negative)
Expenditures (continued)
Public safety (continued):
Jail 1,115,854 [,210,902 1,125,764+ 85,138
Jail - meals 140,400 140,400 138,483 1,917
Construction code department 226,955 229715 224,278 5,437
Emergency 911 673,387 766,864 685,087 81,777
Office of emergency preparcdness 9,684 42,732 32,879 9,853
Animal control 39.643 93.597 93,137 460
Public works:
Department of public works 1,183 1,185 413 172
Drains-at-large 35,750 35,750 - 35,750
Health and welfare:
Public health 181,621 181,693 180,560 1,133
Substance abuse 45,000 54,623 51,623 e
Medical examiner 52,200 71,381 71.381 -
Mental health 91,531 91,531 91,531 -
Mental health - guardianships 12,408 12,643 12,643 -
Velerans' affairs 72,118 72,614 68,328 4,286
Soldiers and sailors - - 8,267 (8,267)
Community and cconomic development:
Planning commission 2,745 2,820 2,091 729
Zoning administration 28,920 28913 26,834 2,079
Recreation and culture:
Parks and recreation 2,000 2,404 2,406 (2)
Law library - - 10,938 (10.938)
Other:
Insurance and bonds 330,000 381,673 381,671 2
FHealth insurance 250,000 243,782 212,318 31,464
Employee retirement 30,000 (30,000}
City/County airport 12,500 15,000 15,000 -
Capital outlay - 144,584 209,994 (65410}
Total expenditures 7,068,262 8,782,708 8,485,586 297,122
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures  (14,895,686)  (16,705,314) (468,020) 16,237,294
Other financing sources (uses)
[ransfers in (1,288.000) (1,359,739 1,351,672 2,711,431
Transfers out (199,300) (210,800) (211,506) (706)
Total other financing sources {uses) (1.487,300) (1.370,559) 1,140,166 2,710,725

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

(16,382,986) (18,275.873) 672,146 18,948,019
286,243 286,243 286,243 i
S (16.096,743) S(17,989,630) § 958,389 3 18,948,019
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Gladwin County
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Emergency Medical Services Fund
Year ended December 31, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budgpet Budget Actual {(Negative)
Revenues
Property taxes and related fees $ - 8 - § 932,330 § 932,330
Interest earnings - - 3,116 3,116
Total revenues - - 935,446 935,446
Expenditures
Health and welfare:

Emergency medical services - S 702,036 (702,036)
Total expenditures - - 702,036 (702,036)
Net change in fund balances - - 233410 233,410
Fund balances-beginning 1,433,315 1,453,315 1,453,315 -
Fund balances-ending S1,453,315 $1,453.315 51.686725 % 233410




Gladwin County
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - E-911 Miltage Fund
Year ended December 31, 2014

Revenues

Property taxes and related fees
Interest earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
Public safety:

Emergency 911 services
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out
Total other financing sources {(uscs)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
A - % - $699,159 3% 699,159
- - 957 957
- - 700,116 700,116
- - 49,610 (49,610)
- - 49,610 {49.610)
- - 650,506 650,506
- - (754.717) (754,717)
- - {754,717) (734,717)
- - {104,211 (104,211)
085,219 985,219 985,219 -
$985,219 $985219 $881,008 § (104.211)

ih1



Gladwin County

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - E-911 Millage Fund
Year ended December 31, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budget Budgzet Actual {(Negative)
Revenucs
Property taxes and related fees $ $ - 3 - 3 -
State revenue - - 162,591 162,591
Interest earnings - - 1,185 1,185
Total revenues - - 163,776 163,776
Expenditures
Public safety:

Emergency 911 services - - 40,087 {40,087)
Total expenditures - - 40,087 (40,087)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - - 123,689 123,689
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - & S -
Net change in fund balances - - 123,689 123,689
Fund balances-beginning 675,612 75,612 673,612 =
Fund balances-ending £675.612 $675.612 £799.30! % 123,689
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Gladwin County
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Senior Citizens Program Fund
Year ended December 31, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property taxes and related fees M - 3 - $ 466,120 § 466,120
Interest earnings - - 518 518
Total revenues - - 466,638 466,638
Expenditures
Health and welfare:

Senior citizens programs - - 483,321 (483,321)
Total expenditures - - 483,321 (483,321)
Net change in fund balances - - (16,683) (16,683)
Fund balances-beginning 185,135 185,135 185,135 -
Fund balances-ending $ 185135 $ 185,135 § 168452 (16,683)
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Gladwin County
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Economic
Economic Development
Friend of  Gypsy Development  Courthouse  Revolving
the Court Moth  Administration Preservalion Loan

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 97379 § 6,00 § 5,868 § 13,233 8 45,703
Investments - 190,289 16,454 - S
Accounts receivable - s - - 30,760
Due from other funds - - - - e
Due from other governmental units 12,047 - - & S
Total assets 109,626 5196290 § 22,322 % 13,233 % 76,463
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 8 - 5 - 5 - 8 =
Accrued expenses - 629 - - -
Advances from other governmental units - - - - -
Total liabilities - 629 - - g
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - accounts receivable - - - - 41,414
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - 41,414
Fund balances
Restricted 109,626 195,661 - - S
Assigned - - 22,122 13,233 35,049
Total fund balances 109,626 193,661 22,322 13,233 35,049
Total liabilitics, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances $109626 S$196,290 3 22322 § 13,233 8§ 76,463




Gladwin County
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Register of FEMA Corrections
Remonu- Deeds Flood vlarriage Officer
mentation Technology Mapping Counscling  Training

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents £26965 § 61,475 $11,301 § 29204 § 22941
Investments 5 - - , .
Accounts receivable 5 5 - - -
Due frotn other funds S 5 - - -
Due from other governmental units - - -
Total assets $26965 S 61,475 S11,301 S 29204 $§ 22,941

Liabilities
Accounts payable § 470620 S - 5 - 5 - 3 -

Accrued expenses - - - - e
Advances from other governmental units - - - - -
Total liabilities 47,020 - - - =

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - accounts receivable - - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources

P~ ) ) ’
Fund balances \ :‘}\} 0“
Restricted 1“ 61,475 11,301 29,204 22 941
Assigned - - - - -
Total fund balances \ (20,055) / 61,475 11,301 29204 22,941

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, v
and fund balances $76065 § 61475 SILIOL S 29204 § 22,941




Gladwin County
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Drug County Uniform E-911 4%
Enforeement Library CDBG  Addressing Surcharge

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 23,810 § - 5 38507 § - $100,659
Investments - - - - -

Accounts receivable S - . . =
Due from other funds - - - . -

Due from ether governmental units - - 12,732 - -
Total assets 5 23,840 8 - $ 71,259 % - $100,639
Liahilities

Accounts payable S - 8 - 5 - 8 - § 2450

Accrued expenses - - . - -
Advances from other governmental units - - - - &

Total liabilities 5 = 5 . 2,450

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - accounts receivable - - - - -

Total deferred inflows of resources - - - e S

Fund balances

Restricted 23.840 - 71,259 - 08,209
Assigned . = - - -
Fotal fund balances 23,840 - 71,259 - 98,209

Fotal liabitities, deferred intlows of resources,

and fund balances § 23840 § - % 71259 % $100,659




Gladwin County
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Sherilf Jail Project  Leadership
Commissary Training Telephone  Fresh Academy

Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents g 1,162 $ 11,337 § 1,143 §$§3,399 § 1,026
Investments - - - - -
Accounts receivable - - - - -
Due from other funds - - - - -
Due from other governmental units - - - - &
Total assets ) 11,162 5§ 11,337 § [,143 $3399 § 1,026

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ - 5 - S - 8§ - § c
Accrued expenses - - - s :
Advances from other governmental units - - - & -

Total liabilities - E - - -

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - accounts receivable - - - = =

Total deferred inflows of resources S 5 - - -

Fund balances

Restricted - 11,337 - - -
Assigned 11,162 - 1,143 3,399 1,026
Total fund balances 11,162 11,337 1,143 3,399 1,026

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances S 1,162 $ 11,337 § 1,143 53399 § 1,026




Gladwin County

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Probate

DHS - DUS - Court - Youth
Social Child Child Leadership

Wellire Care Care Yeterans ORY Academy
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents S - 312 $10,03% 5 1,902 g 637
{nvestments - - - - -
Accounts receivable - - - - -
Due from other funds - - - - -
Due from other governmental units 7,638 3,305 7,739 - &
Total assets S 7.638 5,617 S17,778 § 1,902 g 637
Liabilities
Accounts payable 5 - - $17,200 § - S -
Accrued expenses - - - - 0
Advances from other governmental units - - - - -
Tatal liabilities - - 17,200 - -
Deferred infllows of resources
Unavailable revenue - accounts receivable - - - - -
Tatal deferred inflows of resources - - - - -
Fund balances
Restricted 7,638 5,617 578 1,902 -
Assigned - - - 657
Total fund balances 7,638 5,617 578 1,902 657
Total linbilities, deferred intlows of resources,
and fund balances $ 7,638 5617 17,778 § 1,902 S 657
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Gladwin County

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Accounts receivable

Due from other funds

Due from other governmental units
Total assets

Liabilitics

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advances from other govemnmental units
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - accounts receivable
Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances

Restricted

Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances

December 31, 2014

Special

Revenue BDebt Service Capital Projects

Total
Nonmajor

Veterans Public Governmental

Brouillard Improvement Funds

$ 9,397 s - 5 553,650
- - 206,743
- - 30,760
- - 45,481

$ 9,397 3 - 3 836,634

8 - b - 3 66,670
- - 629
- - 67,299
- - 41,414
- - 41,414
- - 630,533

9,397 - 97,388
9,397 - 727,921
$ 9,397 M - 8 836,634




Revenues

Property taxes and related fees
Federal revenue

State revenue

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest earnings
Reimbursements

Other revenue

Donations and contributions
Total revenues

Expenditures
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Community and economic development
Recreaton and culture
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenucs
over expenditures

Other linancing sources (uses)
Transfers in

I'ransfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

Gladwin County
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in FFund Balances - Nonmajor
Governmental Funds
Year ended December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Economie
Economic Development

Friend of  Gypsy Development  Courthouse  Revolving

the Court Math  Administration Preservation Loan

$ -8 -8 -3 -8 c
48,117 - - - -
4,240 - - - 80

- 220 39 - 1,307
- (776) 8,050 - -
- 5 - 13,233 -

52,357 {336) 3,089 13,233 1,387
120,132 - - .
. . 15,492 - 300
- 120,132 15,492 - 500
52,357 (120,688) {1,403) 13,233 887
- S 7,500 - -
(68.000) - : {793) -
(68,000) - 7,500 (795) -
{15.643) (120,688) 97 12433 887
125,269 316,349 22,225 795 34,162
$109,626 5195661 § 22322 S 13,233 § 35,049

77



Revenues

Property taxes and related fees
Federal revenue

State revenue

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest earnings
Reimbursements

Other revenue

Donations and contributions
Total revenues

Expenditures
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Community and cconomic development
Recreaton and culture
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources {uscs)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Totat other financing sources (usecs)

Net change in fund batances
Fund balances-beginning
FFund balances-ending

Gladwin County
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor
Governmenta! Funds
Year ended December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Register of FEMA Corrections
Remonu- Deeds Flood Marriage Officer
ientation Technology Mapping Counseling  Training
$ - 3 - 5 - 8 = $ S
42,986 - = 5 -
- 37,970 - 2,360 6,195
- 63 - - -
42,986 37,833 - 2.360 6,195
63,041 40,203 - - -
- s g - 208
63,041 40,203 - - 208
(20,053) (2,370) - 2,360 5987
(20,055) (2,370) - 2,360 5,987
- 63,845 11,301 26,844 16,954
$(20,055) § 61475 S11,301 $ 29204 S 22940
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Gladwin County

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor

Revenues

Property taxes and related fees
Federal revenue

State revenue

Charyes for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest earnings
Reimbursements

Other revenue

Donations and contributions
Total revenues

Expenditures
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Community and economic development
Recreaton and culture
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges
T'otal expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other fnancing sources (uses)
I'ransters in

l'ransfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

Governmental Funds
Year ended December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Drug County
Enforcement Libeary CDBG

Uniform E-911 4%
Addressing Surcharge

S - S (1) S -8 -8 .
- - 123,711 - s
3 - 97,199 - 122,201
160 . - - .
. 5 : : 57
. £ 2 i 5,753
- . : (5,430) -
160 (71) 220910 (5.430) 128,01}
51 : = - 35,894
. - 149,651 o .
5 . 149,651 - 35,894
109 (7)) 71,259 (5.430) 92,117
] ; . . @,213)
: ; - - (@213)
109 (71) 71,259 (5.430) 87,904
23,731 71 - 5430 10,305
S 238410 S - $71259 § — S 98,209

79



Gladwin County

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor
Governmental Funds

Revenues

Property taxes and related fees
Federal revenue

State revenue

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest earnings
Reimbursements

Other revenue

Donations and contributions
Total revenues

Expenditures
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Community and economic development
Recreaton and culture
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

Special Revenue

Year ended December 31, 2014

Sheriff Jail Project Leadership
Commissary Training Telephone  Fresh Academy
8 - 8 - 5 - S - 5 =
- 3,068 - - -
48,902 - 16,976 - 1,050
- s 5 - {237
48,902 3,068 16,976 - 813
49,774 1,251 9,591 - S
- - . 10 -
- s g - 1,904
49,774 1,251 9,591 10 1,904
(872) 1,817 7,385 (10) (1,091)
- - (9,400) (18,000) -
- - (9,400) (18,000) -
(872) 1,817 (2,015) (13,010) (1,091)
i2,034 9,520 3,158 21,409 3,117
5 11,162 § 11,337 % 1,143 % 3,399 § £,026
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Revenucs

Property taxes and related fees
Federal revenue

State revenue

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest earnings
Reimbursements

Other revenue

Denations and contributions
Total revenues

Expenditures
Judicial

General government
Public safety

Public works
Health and welfare

Community and economtic development

Recreaton and culture
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Trans{ers in
Fransfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances-beginning
FFund balances-ending

Gladwin County
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor
Governmental Funds
Year ended December 31, 2014

Special Revenue

Probate
DS - DHS - Court - Youth

Social Child Child Leadership
Wellare Carc Care Veterans ORV Academy
g - - 8 - 8 - 5 - 5 -
- 29,790 110,241 19,902 - -

. - - - (944) -

- 16,559 28,096 e . -

- - - - - 600

- 46,349 138,337 19,902 (94) 600

3177 76,682 299,533 20,940 - 1,291
3177 76,682 299,533 20,940 - 1,291
(5,177) {30,333) (161,196) (1,038) (944} {691)
5,000 31,500 150,000 - - -
5,000 31,500 150,000 - - -
(177 1,167 (11,196} (1,038} {944) (691}
7815 4,450 11,774 2,940 944 1,348

§ 7,638 S 5617 8 578 § 1,902 § - 5 657
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Gladwin County

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor

Revenues

Property taxes and refated fees
Federal revenue

State revenue

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest earnings
Reimbursements

Other revenue

Donations and contributions
Total revenues

Expenditures
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Community and economic development
Recreaton and culture
Debt service:

Principal

[nterest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other firancing sources (uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

Governmental Funds

Year ended December 31, 2014

Special
Revenue BDebt Service Capital Projects
Total
Nonmajor
Veterans  Building Public Governmental
Brouillard Authority  Improvement Funds
S -5 - 5 - 5 71)
- - - £71,828
- - - 205,987
- - - 336,029
- - - 60
B s - 1,686
- - - 57,682
- - - 13,233
3,266 - - (1,801)
3,266 - - 784,733
- - - 103,244
- - - 96,769
8d5 - - 524,610
- - - 167,547
845 - - 392,170
2,421 - - (107,437)
- - - 194,000
- - (4,041) (104,449)
- - (4,041) 39,551
2,421 - (4.041) {17,886)
6,976 - 4,041 745,807
§ 9397 § - 3 -3 727,921




Assets

Casheand cash equivalonts
Investments

Taxes recervable
Advances 1o other funds
Total assets (all current)

Liabilities
Advances (tom other funds

Net pusition
Unresineted
Total net position

Gladwin County
Combining Statement of Net Position

- Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

December 31,2014
Tax 1009 Tax 2000 Tax 011 Tax 002 Tax 2013 I'ax
Reversion  Revobving  Revolving  Revolving  Revolving  Revalving Total
§ 250317 S 3 - 3 - % - 0% 5243 S 3TN
2852135 283213
- . - 63,049 1.879 353813 422,741
- - - 143,000 120,000 - 203,000
535,532 - - 2109 121,879 408267 1,275,727
- - . - 145,000 145,040
533.5 - 210.049 121,879 263,267 1,130,727
§ 335,532 % - § C% 200049 § 121879 S 263267 $1,130.727
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Operating revenues

Tnterest camed on delinguent taxes
Collection fees

Fotal operatng revenues

Operating expenscs
Fees and charges
Total operatimg expenses

Operating meome

Nonoperating reyenues (expenses)
interest camings

Interest expense

Net nonoperating revunues (expenses)

Incoine belore transiirs

Transfers
Transfers m
Fransfers out
I'otal ransfers

Changes tn nel position
Total net posihion-beginnmg
Total net posinon-ending

Gladwin County
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Nonmajor
Enterprise Funds
Year ended December 31,2014

Tax 2009 Tax 2010 Tax 2001 Tax  20127Tax 2003 Tax
Reversion  Revolving  Revolving  Revolving  Revolving  Hevolving Totd

) - 3 - % 340 05 13879 S H1a401 § 147707 5 281427
329,935 - 6,499 29017 14,894 42,794 453,139
3299335 9,939 41,896 161,293 194,50 734.366
136,192 - - - - - 136,192
136,192 - - - - - 136,192
193,743 & 9939 12396 161,293 190,501 508 374
811 . - 321 2l 23 1384
e - - - S (2.923) (2.921)
811 - - 331 ) (2.900) (1,339
194,554 - 9,939 43,217 161,524 187.601 506,835
(125.000) - (363.725)  (2Ra.166) (308391} - (1,083,287)
{125,00ih - (363,725} (286.166)  (308.391) - 11,083.282)
69,554 - [333,786) (242949  (146,867) 187.601 (486,447)
165978 - 353786 432,998 268.746 73600 1617174
§ 3353312 % - % - 5 210049 % 121,879 § 263267 §1.130.717
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Gladwin County

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Cush Nows from uperating activities
Receipts from penalties and inferest on
delinguent taxes

Payments 1o supphers for goods and services
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Mows from noneapitd financing
activities
Proceeds from mterfund advances
Issuances / sepayments of inter fund advances
Trangders in
Transters oul
Net cash provided {used) by noncapital
linancing activ itivs

’
Cush flows [rom investing activities
Interest earnings
Net cash provided by investing activitics

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash wquivale

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning
Cash and cash equivalenis-cnding

Reconcilintion of operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Cperating income
Adjustments to reconcile opetating mcome
o et eash provided by operating acun ites

Change in assets and habihitics

Taxes recervable

Netcash provided by operating activibies

Year ended December 31, 2014

Tax 204 Tax 2010 Tax 2001 I'ax 20012 7Tax 24113 Tax

Reversion  Revelving  Revolviog  Revolving Revobving Revolviog Total
$ 345081 % § 77461 % 372265 % 5331834 S 229106 SEETTI4Y
{136,192} - - . - - 1136.192)
208,891 - 77461 372,263 553,834 229,106 1,411,557
- - 350,000 - - - 350,000
- - - (222,000 (197000} (77.000) (496,006)
{123.000) - (363,725)  (236,166) (308,391} - (1.083.242)
(123.000) - (13,723)  (508.1aby  (305,391) (77.000) 11.229.282)
311 - - 321 129 23 1.3484
81! - . 321 229 23 1,384
84,702 - 63,736 t135,580) 18,672 132,129 213,659
277,187 - 138,746 125,596 160,46 125.616 427 618
S 361889 S S § 202322 % 9n0te S 209,035 % 277.745  SL141.307
§ 193,713 $ . % ©939 % 42,896 $ 161,295 $ 190,301 § 3983M
15148 - 67,332 119,369 392,519 38,6405 412,039
$ 208891 % % 77461 % 372265 5 3531834 0§ 219006 S1.010.13

b= =
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Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Agency Funds

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Liabilities

Due to other governmental units
Due to others

Fotal liabilities

Gladwin County

December 31, 2014

Trust & Penal
Agency Fines Total
$ 276,298 § 13,614 289912
§ 276,298 S 13,614 289,912
$ 145,102 8§ - 145,102
132,540 13.614 146,134
§ 277642 § 13,614 291,256
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Gladwin County
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Federal Federal
CFDA  Pass-Through Grantor's Awards
Federal Grantor / Pass- Through Grantor / Program Title Number Number Expended
US Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through Michigan Department of Human Services:
Incentive FOC 93.563 N/A § 27453
CRP - Friend of the Court 93.563 CSFOCI13-26001 164,103
CRP - Prosccutor 93.563 C5PAI13-26002 43,101
US Department of Justice:
Passed through Michigan Department of Community Health:
Vietims of Crime Act 16.575 CVS10125-18U 2014 25,803
Victims of Crime Act 16.575 CVRP 2015 7,007
US Department of Homeland Security:
Passed through Michigan Department of State Police:
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 N/A 10,045
US Department of Transportation:
Passed through Michigan Department of Transportation:
Capital Assistance Section 3311 20.509 2012-0083/P4 70,584
Capital Assistance Section 3311 20.309 2012-0083/P5 31,689
Operating Assistance Section 5311 20.509 2012-0083/P6 250,278
Prior Year Reconciliations 20.509 2012-0083/P3 7,620
US Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through Michigan Housing Development Authority:
Community Development Block Grant 14,228  MSC-2010-0496-HOA 123,711
US Department of Agriculture Rural Development
NIA 68046
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 830342

e ————
—————

1}2



MNote 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4,

Gladwin County
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended December 31, 2014

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity
of Gladwin County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requircments
ol OMB Circular A-133. Auclits of Siates, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may ditter
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements,
which are reconciled in Note 4.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards excludes any expenditures of the
Road Commission and Gladwin City-County Transit component units because
they received scparate audits.

The amount received from the US Department of Transportation on the schedule
of cxpenditures of federal awards 1s 100% provided to a subrccipient.

The tollowing reconciles the federal revenues reported in the December 31, 2014
financial statements to the expenditures of the County administered federal
programs reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards:

Federal revenue reported in governmental tunds $ 470,171
Amounts received by the County and passed through to the

Gladwin City-County Transit 360,171
Total expenditures ot federal awards $ 830,342

The amounts that are received and passed through to subrecipients are received by
Agency tunds, and are therelore not reported as revenucs.



[ndependent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit ot Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Commissioners
Gladwin County
Gladwin, Michigan

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governiment
Auditing Standurds issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Gladwin County, Michigan (County), as of and for the ycar ended December 31, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
tinancial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 17, 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
arc appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectivencss of the County’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal comirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrccted on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deliciency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important cnough to merit attention by those charged with governance.



Our consideration of internal contro! was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or signiticant deficiencics and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencics may exist that were not identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as 2014-1, that
we consider to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements arc
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective ol our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Gladwin County, Michigan’s Response to Findings

The County’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The County’s response was not subject to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intcrnal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectivencss ot
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govermnent Auditing Standards in considering the cntity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly. this communication is not suitable for any other
purposes.

Midland, Michigan
June 17, 2013



Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Board of Commissioners
Gladwin County
Gladwin, Michigan

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Gladwin County, Michigan’s (County) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on the County’s major federal program for the year ended
December 31, 2014, The County's major federal program is identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the County’s major federal
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Ihose standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material eftect on a major federal program
oceurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis lor our opinion on compliance for the
major federal program. However, our audit docs not provide a legal determination of the
County’s compliance.



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Gladwin County, Michigan, complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material cffect on its
major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a dircct and material effect on
the major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
contro! over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the resulis of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Midland, Michigan
June 17, 2015



Gladwin County
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Scction [ — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

[nternal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? X Yes No
Significant deficiency identified not considered to be a
material weakness? X  Yes None reported

Noncompliance material to {inancial statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency identified not considered to be a
material weakness? X  Yes None reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Ungualified
Any audit {indings disclosed that arc requirced to be reposted
in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a) X  Yes No

[dentification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
93.563 Child Support Enforcement

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs $300,000
Auditee qualitied as a low-risk auditee? X Yes No

Ph)



Gladwin County

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Section I1 - Financial Statement Findings

2014-1) Recording of Year-End Reccivables (Significant Deficiency, Repeat Comment)

Criterin:

Condition:

Questioned Costs:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Management’s
Response:

Modificd accrual accounting requires the timely recording and
reconciling of reccivables and  asscssments and the related
reconciliation to the underlying detail records.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Drain Commissioner’s
office experienced stalt turnover which delayed the timely
reconciliation of certain assessment receivable records Lo the amounts
recorded in the general ledger. Accordingly, changes in the balances of
assessments receivable were not recorded until a significant time after
the end of the fiscal year.

Noene,

Revenues, receivables, and deferred inflows of resources were initially
misstated on the general ledger.

The primary cause ol this situation was personnel turnover in the Drain
Commissioner’s olfice, lack of Jocumentation of accounting
procedures, plus lack of suflicient training in applicable accounting and
recordkeeping procedures and software program usage.

We recommend that the Drain Commissioner's office Treasurer’s
olfice continue to diligently identify receivables for all federal and state
funds received after year-end. In addition, we recommend that all
receivables identiticd be recorded as debits to reccivable accounts and
credits to the corresponding revenue accounts.

Management agrees with the recommendation proposed by its auditors

and has already made plans to upgrade its exisling tax assessmenl
software and to provide formal training on it use.
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Gladwin County
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Section HI = Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None.
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Gladwin County
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended December 31, 2012

2012-1 ldentification of State/Federal Receivables

This finding was not adequately resolved and is shown as finding 2014-1.

2012-2 Recording of Accounts Pavable

This finding was adequately resolved and is no longer considered a finding.
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